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BOARD’S REPORT Ideas create, values protect

To the Members of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited,

The Directors hereby present their 21st Annual Report on the business, operations and the
state of affairs of the Company together with the audited financial statement for the year
ended March 31, 2018:-

Financial Highlights (% in million)
Particulars 2017-18 | 2016-17

_Totul Income 3676.22 2,535.34
Total B Expenditure 3196.32 2,046.04
' Profit before tax 479.90 489.30
Provision for tax {including Deferred Tax) (163.04) 169.84
Profit after tax 316.86 319.46
Add: Profit and Loss account balance brought forward 515.37 259.80
from previous year

| Profit available for appropriation 832.23 579.26
Transter to Special Reserve under Secticn 45-IC cf the 63.37 63.89

| RBI Act, 1934 ’

fg ;;;;{u‘; carried to Balance Sheet 759.87 515.37

Dividend

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended Marcn 31, 2018.
Out of profit for the year, ¥ 62.37 million has been transferred tc Special Recerve under
Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934 and the balance has been transferred to Reserves &
Surplus.

Information on the state of affairs of the Company

Information on the operational and financial performance, among others, is given in the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report as annexed to this Report as Annexure B
and 15 in accordance with the provisions of the RBI Circular.Nos. RBI/2014-15/293
DNBR (PD) CC Na 0062/03 10.007/20i4 15 dated NMovember 10, 2074 and DNMBR (P1D)
CC. No. 029/03.10.001/ 2014-15 April 10, 2015 on Revised Regulatory Framework for
NBrC.

Holding /Subsidiary Company

M/s. Edelca p Securities Limited (holding 70.45%) is the Holding Company of the Company.
M/s Edelweiss Financial Services Limited is holding 22.57% equity of the Coraparny, which
is also holdmg 100 % eqm*v of Ecap Equities Limited who in turn holds 100 % equity in

Hdelcap Securities Limited. Indirectly, Compeny is a sabSIdlary of Edelweiss Financial

Services Limited. The Company does nor have any subsidiary or Asscciate Company

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate ldentity Number; U67120MH1957PLC285490
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Mzharashtira @©+51 22 4009 4400 ® +5122 4019 4925
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Share Capital Ideas create, values protect
During the year under review, the Company had allotted following equity shares on Rights

Basis:
i 50,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 for cash at a premium of ¥ 90 per share to Edelcap
Securities Limited on September 21, 2017

ii. ~ 50,00,000 Equity Shares of % 19 for cash at a premium of ¥ 90 per share to Edelweiss
Financial Services Limited on January 31, 20718

Consequentiy, the Paid-up Share Capital and Authorised Share Capital of the Company
stands at ¥ 429.50 million and ¥ 500 million respectively.

Debenture Redemption Reserve

In respect of privately p]aced Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDj, no Debenture
Redempnon Reserve (DRR) is required in terms of the clarification issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs by Notification dated June 18, 2014 as the Compary is registered as Non-
Banking Finance Company with Reserve Bank of India.

The Company had completed the public issue of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs)
aggregating to Rs. 4516 million during financial year 2017-18. In terns of the provisicns of
the section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant circulars as amended upto
date, the Comipany has creaied DRR on all cutstanding publicly placed detentures
Accordingly, the Conipany has iransferred Rs. 8.99 million during the current year tc DRR.

There were Nil non-convertible debentures which have not been claimed by the Invessors or
not paid by the Company after the date on which the non-convertible debentures became

due fer recemptinn,

Cinance

m

Your Company continued t borrow funds from various Banks. The' Cempany enjeys credit
rating from various Rating Agencies. The credit ratings reflect'the Company’s financial
discipline and pruderce. The detzils of the credit‘ratings are furnished in tha Notes o the
Financial Statements.

Loans, luvestments and Guarantees :

Particulars of loans given aid investinents made are provided in the Notes to the Financial

Statemernts.. Corporate guarantee given by .the Company in relation to securitisation
transactioris is Rz, 328.98 million (Previous year: Rs. 322.58 inillion}.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial vosition _eof the

company

There has been o Malerial clanges and Commiiments, if any, affecting the financial
g U

pesiticn of the Company which have occuired batween the end of the financial year o the

d the date of the

Company 'tc which the firancial statement relate (i.2. March 21, 2018) an
report e, May 23, 2018,

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
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Extract of the Annual Return ldeas create, values protec

In accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the Cofnpanies Act, 2013 and the Rules
framed thereunder, the extract of the Annual Return in the prescribed Form MGT - 9 is
provided in Annexiire A to this Report.

Related Party Transacticns

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties refetred to in Section 188
(1) of Act are provided in the Form AOC-2 under Annexure-C which forms part of this
Report. All the Related Party Transactions entered by the Company are on arm'’s length
basis and in the ordinary course of business. All the Related Party Transactions as required
under AS-18 are reported in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The company has also framed the related party transaction policy in this regard and copy of
the same is enclosed and marked as Annexure-C.1. The Policy is uploaded on the

Company’s website at the link: https://www.edelweissretailfin.com

Internal Control System and Internal Financial Controls

The Company has in place adequate internal financial control with reference to financial
statement. The Company also has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size,

scale and complexity of its operations.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

i Board of Directors
At present the Board of Directors consists of Mr. Mitul Bhagvandas Shah,
Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah, Mr. Anil Kothuri, Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth and
Ms. Shalinee Miman. '

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the C ompanies Act, 2013,
the Independent Directors have given requisite declaration that they meet the
criteria of independence as provided in the said section.

ii. Retirement by Rctation of the Directors
Mi. Anil Kothuwii retites Dy 1otelion al the fuitlicomliyg Annual Geneial Meeilng

and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

1ii. Key Managr’nal Personnel
The Company has following persons Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) ¢f the
Company as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules

[ramed thereunder:-

Mr. Arun Kumar N‘ayyar - Chief Executive Officer .
Mr. Vineet Mahajan - Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Sudipta Majuindar - Company Secretary

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate {dentity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285450
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925
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. Ideas create, values protect
Beard Meetin P

During the financial year 2017-18, five (5) board meetings were held: May- 16, 2017, August
1, 2017, September 11, 2017, November 2, 2017 and january 22, 2018. The intervening gap
between the meelings was within the period prescrived under the Companies Act, 2(i3.

Committees of the Board

The following are 13 Committees constituted by the Board:

i) Audit Committee;

ii) Risk Management Committee;

iif) Asset Liability Management Committee(ALCO);

) . C or‘p‘crate Social Responsibility Committee(CSR);

v) Nemination and Remwuneration Comn ttee(INRC);

vi) uperatmm Comuut’ree; )

viij  Investment Committee;
viii)  Identification Committee;

ix) Review Committee;

x) Securities [PO Commitiee;
Xi) I'T Strategy Committee; and
xii) IT Steering Committee

(a)

The Compoesitien o Beard and Committees were as under:

| S. | N . ' Designation
No. | ‘ |
o IVir. N‘Iittli_ﬁhag\{ahdas Snah o ldependen* Director MW"}
P2 Mr. Sarjay Nathalal Shah independent Director B _4!
L3 Mi. Anil Kothuri : Norn-Executive Director ;
4 My, Krishraswamy Siddharth Non-Executive Director
g“ 5 | Ms. Shalinee Mimani Non-Executive Direcior
5. No. ~Naine of the Commitiee : Composition i
11 Audit Committee 1. Mr. Anil Kothuri !
‘ B ' 2. Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah

3 Mr Mitul Bhagvandag Shan

2. | Risk Management Committee 1. Mr. Anil Kothuri ,

‘ ' o 2. Mr. Krishnaswamniy Sicdcharth «
3. Ms. Shalinee Mimani !
. Mr. Vineet Mahajan |

5. Mr. Arun Kumar Nayyar
A. Mr. Karthik Balasubramanian i

7. Mr. Sachin Bawari

[
. _ o |
| 1. Mr. Anil Kothuri = |
2. Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth '

: 3. Mr. Arun Navvar

;
{
'

4]

Asscthbmt; Management Committee

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited . - =
Corpaorate Identity Number: U57120MH1997PLC285490
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4. Mr. Vineet M;}Té‘fgn

iGedas Tlede, vaiues

5. Ms. Shalinee Mimani

6. Mr. Vikas Mohan Srivastava

7. Mr. Karthik Balasubramanian

8. Mr. Sanjay Mishra

9. Mr. Sachin Bawari

10. Ms. Sudipta Majumdar .

Nomination And Remuneration
Committee

1. Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah

[
£
=

. Mitul Bhagvandas Shah

3. Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth

Corporate Social Responsibility
Cominittee

1. Mr. Anil Kothuri

2. Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth

3. Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah

Operations Coimnmittee

1. Mr. Anil Kothuri

2. Mr. Krishnaswarny Siddharth

. Shalinee Mimani

@
I
=~
w

Investment Comimittee

. Mr. Anil Kothuri

N
=

a Krishnaswafhy Siddharth

. Vineet Mahajan

¥'>S)3
=
=

.. Mr. Arun Nayvyar

Identification Committee

Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth

. Shalinee Mimani

SHSAE
<
w

Mr. Sachin Bawari

Review Committee

|, Mr. Arun Kumar Nayyar

. Mitul Bhagvandas Shah

W
=
-

. Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah

10

Securities IPO Committee

Mr. Anil Kothuri

Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth

,,..._q

. Vineet Mahajan

IS
=
==
e

Ms. Shalinee Mimani

11

IT Strategy Committee

1 1M, Sanjay Nathalai Shah

2.Mr. Aiun Nayyar

3. Mr.K Siddharth

4. Mr. Rajat Goel

5.Mr. Amit Saraswat

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1957PLC285430
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra ©+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925
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IT Steering Committee

[ 1. Ms.

Shalinee Mlmaru

2. Mr.

Amit Saraswatw

3. Mr,

Rajat Goel

Meetings

Table containing details of meetings of Board, various committees & members along with

dates are as below:

Board of Directors

May 16, 2017
August 01, 2017
September 11, 2017
November 0%, 2017
Januarv 22, 2018

[

Audit Committee

Ma y 16, 2017
August 01, 2007

November 02, 2017

January 22, 2013

W

Risk Comimittee

BN

May 15, 2017 |
August 01, 2017 |
November 01, 2077
February 01, 2018

Assct Liability Management

Committee

(oY

April 28, 2017 |

- May 13, 2017
July 20, 2017
September 21,2017
November 01, 2017
Ma rch 22, 2018

N

Nomirnation and
Remuneration Committee

May 16, 2017

Corporate Social
Resporelbllity Conuailtee

tw—

May 16, ZU‘I’/
March 235, 2018

~J

i Operations Curninitiee

11

April 05, 2017
May 16, 2017
July 28, 2017

Edelwaiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate dentity Number: U67120MH1987PLC285480
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra
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T~ Repuerag gty protect
September 21, 2017,
October 06, 2017
November 07, 2017:
December 26, 2017
January 31, 201§

February 07, 2018

-

August 29, 2017
January 22, 2018

[}

8 General Meeting

Independent Directors
9 Meeting 1 May 16, 2017

[
sl

Securities IPO Committee 5 January 22, 2018

February 16, 2018

February 27, 201§ ]
March 13, 2018

! March 22, 2018 !

Note: No meeting held for Resource Mobilization Commiittee, Invesiment Committee, Identification

Commiittee, Review Commiittee, IT S trategy & Sicering Committee. '

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS/MEMBERS AT BOARD _AND COMMITTEE

As per Standard 9 of the Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Director {'S5-1')
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India ('ICSI’), the aitendance of Directors
at Board and Committee meetings held during the financial year 2017-18 is provided as

under:

Name &f BM ACM RMC [ ALCO CS5R NRC PO | ocC

Director- HiA/H JA [HTAJHTJA [H A [H A H [A

Anil Kothari 5 5 4 4 4 4 6 6 2 2 NA ! N |5 1|1
A

K. Siddharth 5 |51 NA |[NA| 4 4 6 6 2 2 1 1055111111

fhalinee I MHA | NA - 4 4 6 0 WA TNA | RNA; N |8l 5111 1L

Mimani ) ’ ’ A

Mitul 515 4 4 N | NA| NA | NA | NA | NA 1 1 INNN| N | N

Bhagvandas A AlAT A | A

Shah

Sanjay 5 15 4 4 N | NA | NA | NA 2 2 1 1 'NN| N | N

Nathalal Shah A AlAT AL A

H- Held; A- Attended

Remuneration Policy

The Company has framed a Remureration Policy pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the SEB! (Listing Obligaticn & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Pelicy is provided as an Annexure D to this Report.

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate ldentity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @©+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925

www.edelweissretailfin.com™



@ Edelweiss

ldeas create, values protect

Evaluation of the Performance of the Board
The Board has formulated an Evaluation Poiicy (the Policy) for evaluating the pesformance
of the Board, Managing Director, Executive Directors, Independent Directors, Non-executive

Directors and its Committees. Based on the samse, the performance was evaluated for the
financial year ended March 31, 2018.

The Policy infer alin provides the criteria for performance evalunation such as Board
effectiveness, quality of discussion, contribution at the meetings, business acumen, strategic

toirking, time commitment, relationship with the stakeholders, corporate governance

practices, coniribution of the Committezes tc the Board in discharging its functions, etc.

Dircctors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuan 'S tion 134 of the Companies Act, 2973 ‘(the Act), vour Directors "onﬁ* m that:-

(i) in the: preparation of the annual acounts, the applicable accounting standards

- have been followed;

{ii) we had selected such aceounting poiicies and-applied them consistentiy and

-made judgments and esiimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013
and of the profit of the Company for the financial yearended on that date;

ifi piopes and - suificient care had been taken for the rmaintenance of adequate
R !

accounding records i accordance with the provisions of the Act for

saidgua:di:g the assets of the Compp aay and’ fol preventing and detecting fiaua

- and other irregularities;

(iv) e arnual accounts have been prepared on & going concern basis;

(v} interral tinancial controls have been laid ’iO‘vI‘ 'ond the same are adecuate and

wera o:u ating e*fect'vely, and

(vi)  wehave devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such zystems were adequate and operating

Audit Commities 7 ' : .

The Audit Cormimittee of the Board of Directers of the Comipany comprises of the followring

Directors:- L o .
Mr. Mitul Bhagvandas Shah - Indenendent Director
Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah - Independent Director
v, Anil Kothuri - - Non Executive Director

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corparate ldentity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
Registéred Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925
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The majority of the mewbers of the Comuniitee are Independent Direc
maragement expertise. The constitution and ternis of reference of ihe Commitiee aie in
comphiance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Corporate Social Resporsibility Comimitte e (CSR Committee)

In accordance with the provisions of the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2913, the Board
of Directors of the Company has constltuted the Cerporate Sccial Responsibility Comnittes
(CSR Committee) comprising of the following Directors as its members:-

Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shal. - Independent Director
Mi. Anil Kothuri - Non Executive Director

Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth - Non Executive Director

The constitui uOﬁ and ierins of referenge of the C3R Corumittee include the matters- Qp»ac1f1u1

in Section 135 of the Act.

Tie CSR Pelicy of the ‘Company is uploaded on www.edelweissretailfin.com. Further
details ir, this regarq are provided in Annexure E to this Report.

-

The Company is a subaldlary i Ldeicap Securities mnuted and Jt is a sub&m ar y of
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited. Edelweiss gIOup is conscious of its Corporaie Social
“Responsibiiity and, had accordirgly establishec a CSR aris, “BdelGive Foundatior”” i the
year 2008. As an-amount of Rs. 177.84 million (representing miore than 2% of the
consolidated profit of the group) was spent towards CSR activities d furing the year ended
Marciy ’%1,2«;18 the Lompany has not incurred rhc prescribed CSR expenditure on a

:tclﬂfl(u(_l]lc basm cxurmg the year ended Maxch 2 1, 201 8.

/’y uditors & Audiiors Report

.

e membﬂ“s of the Company at the 20% Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Comparny
neld on August 79, 2017, had appointed-M/s Price Waterhouse LLP, Charterad Accountents,
i as the Auditors of the Company tll the conclusicn of the 200 AGM of the Corhpany to be

held in the year 2( 17, subject to raiification of their ‘appomt‘mer:;+ at every AGM.

hey have resigned as the Statutory Auditors of the ¢ amnpany-dua o siher fime bouned m'n']
compelling assigninents. Board accordingly recommiends the-appointimert of M/s. 5.

Batliboi & Co. LI as statutory auditors of the Company for period of 5 years from tha
conclusion of ensuing arnual generai meeting till the’Annual General Meseting to be held in

2023 subjeci to ra t‘]lf‘dthI‘\ of their appoinnment at every annual general meeting,.

The Campzmv has recei‘ved consent froin the M/s. &. R. Batiiboi & Co. 1.7.P and confir mfmr\n
to that effect that they are not disqualified to be appointed as the Auditors of fhe O Ompnw
r‘/ visions of the Coinpanies Acz, 2013 and rules "nade 'hcleunder )

in terms of the't

The Audifors’” Report ~is 'without 'ary qualification, acdverseé remark, reservation or

disciaimer. The observations of the Auditors in their report read together with the Notes on

R N

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate ldentity Number: U67120MH1557PLC285430 -
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Accounts are self-explanatory and therefore, in the opinion of the Diféctors, do nof ca & ?or

any further explanaticn.

Secretarial Audit

The Board had appointed M/s. Sanjay Grover & Associates, Company Secretaries, as
Sectetarial Auditor, to conduct the secretarial audit for the financial Year ended March 31,
2018. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is provided as an Annexure ¥ to this Report.

Sexual harassment of Women at Workplace

The Company has framed a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace. There
were no cases reported during the year ended March 31, 2018 under the Policy.

Disclosure periaining to Remuneration

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is enclesed with this report as
Annexure-G & G.1.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Ekchange Earnings / OQatgo

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(i}  the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy - The operations of your
Cuinpany are not energy-intensive. However, adequate measures have been

initiated for conservation of energy.
(i)  the steps taken by the Com pany for utilising alternate source of energy - though

the operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the Company shall
explore alternative source of energy, as and when the necessity arises.

(i) the capital investment on energy conservation equipments - Nil

B. TECHNOLGGY ABSORPTION
(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption - The minimum technology
required for the business has been absorbed.

(i) the berefits derived like product improvement, cest reduction, product
development or import substitution - Not Applicable

(iff) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year) - Not Applicable

(a) the details of technology imported;

(b) the year of import;

() whether the techinology been fully absorbed; and

('d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and

the reasons thereof

(iv)  the expenditure incurred on Research and Development - Not Applicable

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285450
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4525
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
During ihe year vnder review, there were no foreign exchange earnings and cutgo (rrevious

year: nil).

Other Disclosuye

No disclosure is required in respect of the details relating to the deposits covered under
Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013, issue of Equity Shares with differential rights as ¢
dividend, voting or otherwise, sweat Equity Shares, as there were no transactions on these
matiters during the year ended March 31, 2018. There were no significant or niaterial order
passed by any regulator or court or tribunal which would impact the status of the Company

as a going cencern and the operations in future.

Risk Managenient-

The Risk Management Committee constituied by the Board of Directors of the Company has

framed and impleniented a Risk Management Policy.

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism .

The' Compary has a Whistle Blower Policy for empleyess 'to report génuine
concerns /erevanchs. The Policy provides for tho adoqudte aafegLarQs against the
victimization of the employeeq who use the Vlgu mechanism. The vigil mechhms'l‘ ig

overbehn bv the A vrht Commlttee

Resource Mobilization

Your Company ceistinued to borrew funds in tiie form of Term loan and Working Capital

from banks ard in the form of Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) cr. private aiid public

piacement pasis.

Your Company fias been able to avail new long term loans from Banks amountirg to

Rs.10, 350 million with tehor up to 5 years.

Your Comparty aiso 1_/reltmld high cost term If)ans anoun tmg 0 Rs.-475 million with a view

o fpiove e overall cost ot debt,

Your Jompary has striven to work vrithin the ALM requiremen:s as prescribed by Reserve

Bank of india (RBi} and approved by the Board.

A. Prinate Placeuient
Juring the year under review, your Company issued 1,000 Secured Non-Convertibie
Debentures of Ks. 1,000,000 each aggregating to Rs. 3,000 mllhun on a private placement

basis. The I\'Cr)f are hsted on BS]: leltpg

During the vear under review, NCDs amourting to Ks. 100 crores ware due for redemption.
which have been redeunpd by your Company on its due date.

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate {dentity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490 o
Registered Office: Edelweiss Holse, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098, Maharashtra @+91 22 4009 4400 ‘® +91 22 4019 4925
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B, Public Issue

Your Company issued 4,916,217 Secured Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,000 each
aggregating to Rs. 4,916 million through public issue. The NCDs are listed on both National
Stock Exchange Limited and BSE Limited. . o,

Subérdinak/Pe)‘tmtual Debit

During the year under review, ycur Company also completed issuance of Unsecured
Subordinate Non-Convertible Debentures aggregating to Rs. 1,240 million and Unsecured
Perpetual Non-Convertible Debentures aggregating to Rs. 450 million on a private
placement basis. The NCDs are listed on BSE.

The Subordirate Debt issuance is for a tenor of 10 years whereas the Perpetual Debt issuance
has an embedded Call Option every year from the end of 10 years from the date of issuance.
The issuances have helped to augment the long term capital requirements of your Company.

During the year under review, NCDs were neither due nor outstancing for redemption.
Ratings

\t\ur Cempany’s iong term ‘and short term:cebt instruments and bank loans are rated by
Brickworks, }CEA and CARE, which are as undel

Instrument, CRISIL | SMERA |ICRA | CARE Brickworks | Brickworks

category

| Long term

instruments AA/Stable | AA/Stable | AA AL BWRAA | BWR AA+
Short term .
instruments A+ NA l Al+ | Al+ NA NA

Assioninent of Loans

During the current year, your Cum any enleied inlo direct asuufnmehl [ldllde[lUll (o
5t paty
portfolic sell down amounting to Rs. 509 million. Your Company plans to securitize/assign

regularly going forwaxd.

Branch Expansion ,

During the year under review, the Company opened 67 rew branch offices and as at March
31, 2018, the Company had network of 97 branches.

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @©+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 43925
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Public Deposits

The Company did not accept any public deposits during the year under review. Therefore,
the disclosures as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder

and RBI Directions are not applicable.
Fraud
Nil frauds were detected during the year.

Change in Nature of Business

During the vear under review, there was no change in the nature of business.

Statutory Discilosures

None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified as per provision of section 164(2) of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Directors of the Company have made necessary disclosures,

as required under various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Human KResource-Initiatives

During the year under review, a lot of focus was given to engaging employees at the branch
level by conducrng structured interactions at the branch manager level and sharing the
company’s long term perspective and their role within. New behavioural fraining programs
were introduced to widen lhe scope of izarning and development activity. The emgloyee
engagement survey done at the corporate level continued to reveal high scores

strengthening our value of people first even further.
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Annexure A

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
CIN

Registration Date
Name of the Company

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Address of the Registered cffice and contact
details

Whether Jisted company Yes /No

Narie, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285450

U67120MH1997PLC285490

February 18, 1997
EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE
LIMITED

Public Company limited by shares

Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road,
Kalina, Mumbai-~ 400098, Maharashtra;
Tel: +91 22 4009 440C0;

Fax:+91 22 40194925;

E-mail: Rfcompliance@edelweissfin.com

Website: www.edelweissretailfin.com

Yes; the Non-convertible Debentures of
the Company are listed on BSE Limited
& National Stock Exchange Limited

Link Intime India Private Limited

C 101, 247 Park, L. B S Marg, Vilhroli
West, Mumbai 400 083, Maharashtra,
India; Tel No: +91 22 491856000

Fax: +91 22 49186Q€0;

Website: www linkintimeco.in

Karvy Computershaze Pvt. Ltd.

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31 &
32, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Gachibowli, Hyderabad-500 Ny
032,Telengana; Tel: +91 40 6716 2222;
Fax: +91 40 2343 1551

Website: www karisma.karvy com

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @+91 22 4009 4400 ® +51 22 4019 4925
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II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
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S

All the business activities contributing 10' % or more of the total turnover of the company shall

be stated:-
SI. | Name and Description | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the
No. | of Product/ service Company
main produicts /
services ;
. Financing activity | 649 91.91
I

# As per National Industrial Classification- A Minisiry of Statistics and Programme TImplementation

$ On the basis of Gross Inconte

L PARTICULARS GF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285450
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925
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Sr. | Name and Address of CIN/GLN Holding/ % of | A’?UIICdble
| No ! the Company’ Subsidiary/ | shares | Section j
Associate neld i
A R - | |
I'1 Edelcap . Securities | Ua7120AP2008PLC057145 Holding 7045 | 2(46) v jl
| Lirited(ESL) - ' f
g - | Address:2nd  Floor, | i
' ME Towers, Elot'No 5, I ]‘
f { Road No 2, Banjara i [
Hills, Hyderabad - : |
500034 ) | | |
IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equ t‘) : : '
1) (’am gory-ivise f:ia,iv': Holding _
Category ‘oif-_m ; Nao. ¢ Shares bexd at fne beginniilg | No. of Shares held af the end of the | % i
Shutciioldels of Lue Veds vear Change |
: | . d’uring !
o DN H : - tiie year ]
De ! Physical | Total [ % | De [ Physical | Total | % of !
ma | of i ma : ‘ total ;
| i ‘ total : ¢ ! Shares
b Sha {T N o |
[ i j Tes i | |
! S i i 3 —
A. Promoters | | e | 3 ;
(1) Indiaa | | _ r
a) Indriquai ] -l o i - - -
JHUF.- . y L |
I h) Cerirai Covt | = i - - - ___L - { i
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c) State Govt (s)

@ -

d) Body corporate

32,950,000

32,950,000

100

42,950,000

42,950,000

100

Nil

e) Banks / FI

d) Any other

Sub-total (A) (1):-

32,950,000

32,950,000

100

| 42,950,000

42,950,000

Nil

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs -
Individuals

b) Other -
Individuals

c) Bodies
Corporate

d) Banks / FI

e) Any Other

Sub-total (A) (2):-

Total
shareholding
of Promoter
(A) =(A)1)+
(A)(2)

32,950,000
*

32,950,000
*

100

42,950,000

42,950,000

100

Nil

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govi(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

£} Inaurance
! (,on‘ DS

I g) Flls T

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2, Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corporate

Indian -

Overseas

b) Individuals

¢ Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
snare capital

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 4
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285430
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098, Maharashtra @+9122 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4525
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Edelweiss

G

Ideas create, values protect
upto Rs. 1 - - - - - - - - -
lakh

* Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
in excess of
Rs. T lakh .
' ¢) Others - - - - i - - - - -
{specifv) | |
Sub-total (B)(2):- - - - -] - - - - -
Total Public - - - - - - - ! - -
| Sharchoiding '
B=E)1+G))
C. Shares held - - - - - - - - -
by Custodian ;
for GDRs & ‘ X
ADRs . |
Grand Total I - ; 32_.950,000 32,950,000 100 - 1 42,950,000 | 42,950,000 100 Nil
RO T ;

* Includes six individul shareholders who are otdmg one share each as nominee of Edelcap Securities Lid.

mldmg of Promoters

! Shase n\.idmg at thie Deginning

5

Shareholding at the end of the

“includes cix individual erﬂ aolders who are holding ore share eack

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

i

: !
z |
i | of the year | Year ‘
tf | No. Of | %% of Lok of i No. of ! % of Yot | % change ;
| | Shares Total | Shares Shares | Total Shares in share |
: | Shares of | Pledged/ ! ' Shares | Pledged / l holding :
! i I the Encumber | of the | encumber | during |
f ! coinpany | ed to total compa | edtototal | the vear
[, | shares ny ‘shares

Edeicap | 252358233 - 76.66 TN [ 30,258,355 17045 NiLp (6.2

Securities | §

Limired*- S E | .f
Fdelwerss FROT 667 566 Ml | o601,667 | 22 R 0.91

Finaucial ' ' ; ‘ ‘

Sevvices . ‘ ]

Limited g | L B

Edelweiss 30,56,000 9.10 - 1 30,00,600 6.96 | Nil| - (212)
| Finvest ‘ ; R

Private . ' I ) ‘

Limited | » L i o

Total 32,950,090 107 | Nil | 42,956,000 | 400 | M N |

10 wopinee of Edelcap Securities Lid

Corporate {dentity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
A Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai- 400098 Maharashtra @©+51 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925
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(iii) Change in Promoters” Shareholding during the FY 2017-18:
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Sl Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholdmg during
No. of the year the year
No. of shares % of total | No. of shares % of total
shares of shares of
the the
_ company company
1 Edelcap Securities Limited* -
At the beginning of the 25,258,333 | 76.66 25,258,333 76.66
year
Date wise Increase i.Allotment of (6.21) | i.Allotment of (6.21)
/Decrease in 50,00,000 equity 50,00,000 equity
Promoters shares on shares on
Shareholding during September 21, 2017 September 21, 2017
the year specifying the | to Edelcap to Edelcap
reasons for increase Securities Ltd. Securities Ltd.
/ decrease (e.g.
allotment /transfer ii. Allotment of ii.Allotment of
/bonus/ sweat equity | 50,00,000 equity 50.00,000 equity
etc) shares on January shares on January
31, 2018 to 31, 2018 to
Edelweiss Financial Edelweiss Financial
L Services Limited Services Limited
At the End of the year 30,258,333 70.45 30,258,333 70.45
2 Edelweiss Financial Services Limited
At the beginning of the 46,91,667 14.24 46,911,667 14.24
year
Date wise Increase i.Allotment of 8.32 | i.  Allotment of 8.32
-/ Decrease in Promoters 50,00,060  equity 50,00,000 equity
 Shareholding during the | shares on shares on
vear specifying the September 21, Septemnber 21, 2017
reasons for increase 2017 to Edelcap to Edelcap
/decrease (e.g. aillotment | Securities Ltd. Securities Ltd.
/transfer /bonus/ sweat ’
equity efc). ii. Allotment of ii.  Allotment of
50,00,000  equity 50,00,000 equity
shares on shares on January
January 31, 2018 31, 2018 to
to Edelweiss Edelweiss Financial
Financial Services Services Limited
Limited
Al the End of the year 96,91,667 22.57 96,91,667 22,57
3 Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
At the beginning of the 30,00,000 9.10 | 30,006,000 l 9.10

year

EdeMeiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate ldentity Number: U67120MH1397PLC285490
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| Date wise Increase i.Allotment of | (2.12) | L. Allotiient (2.12) ]
¢ /Decrease in Promoters 50,00,000  equity i 50,00,060 equity ’
Sharehold%ng during the | shares on | shares on !
year specitying the September 21, September 22, 2017 |
reasons for increase 2017 to Iidelcap to Edelcap !
! i /decrease (e.g. allotment | Securities Ltd. Securities Ltd. =
/transfer / bunus / sweat i
equity etc). ii. Ailctment of H. Allotment  of |
50,00,000  equity 50,00,000  equity |
shares on January shares on January ;
31, 2018 s 31, 7018 to }
Edelweiss Edelweiss Financial f
Financial Services Services Limited ! l
Limited : j |
[ Atthe End of the year 30,00,000 | 6.98 - 30,00£00 6.98
Tncludes six individual skareholders who are h'ndmg vne share each as nominee of Ereicay Securities Ltd.
(iv) & haruholdmg ‘P(ucern of top fen 51 arenulders (other than Directors, Promotere and
I—Le}dehﬂr—G{—)Rc—&&e—A%ks) NIL '
| 51, ] _ Sharehoiding at the Cumulative Shareholding drring
. s e vons ‘
No. i peginning of the yeas the year
b ] s -
}nwmﬁgu‘ﬁr Fach of t’ne Top ‘ No. of shar e; | %y of totai No. of - ; % of total shares
» ! 16 Shareholders | shares of the | shares ; of the company
| | sompany o
i ; | | '
I the begirming of | ONA . Na o NA|[ - T NA|
; | the year 3 N ! |
L NA - NA NA | NA |
D:fcrease in j ' ' ' i '
| Promoters Share | !
nolding during the ! ! !
vear specifying the ’ !
reasons for iricrease / 5
| decrease (e.g. ' , !
allotment /transfer o
- /bonus/ swaai equity ' L :
<) o | f ,
;"A{}Hé'ér{&' ofthe | NA NA NA | NA
i , ! 1
| year | | |
. i .

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1957PLC285490
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(v) Sh arenoldmg cf Di recto*b and Key Managerial Personnel:

!"Sl. ' Shareho;umg at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding |
No. | of during the
the year Year .
For Each of the No. of shares | % of total No. of ! % of total shares of
Directors and shares of the shares the company
KMP ' company
At the beginning Lo ;
of the year .
Date wise Increasa ‘
/ Decrease 11 i
Shareholding | .
during the year i NiI - NIl Nil Nil _ !
specifving the | ‘
rezsons for 2 :

! increase /decrease | '
(e.g. allotmient i :
/transfer /bonus/ i
sweat equity etc):

| At the End of the ‘

g L year | |

-V INDEBTFDNESS

' Inda:btédn. 35 of the C ompany including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment ‘ . (T in miilion)
i R ) ‘ o Secured Luans | Uusecured Depositsw | Total ]
excluding Loans ’ Indebtedness '
deposiis l
Indeébtedness af the beginning ]E
of the fiancial yeas E
*  Principal Armount - 9867.95 992.46 - 10,80 41 |
. _interest due but not paid - - - -
|+ lnterest acerued butnet . 26715 2735 . 304.50
Total (i+1i+ii) 10135.10 1,029.81 - 11,164.91
Change in Indebtedness - R ’ B -
during the financial year S~ E : :
*  Additien 17,858.87 1 2,964.99 - 20,823.86
+  Reduction - (4,155.04) (732.47) - (4,83751)
Net Change - - 13,705.83 2,232.52 - 15,936.35
Indebtedness at the ! B ;
end of the financi alyi"u: o ] I B

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285430
Registered Officer Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @©+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4018 4925
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* Principal Amount 23,571.78 3,224.98 - 26,796.76

* Interest due but not paid - - - -

* Interest accrued but not 241.86 125.02 - 366.88
due

Total (i+ii+iii) | 23,813.64 |  3,350.00 _ 27,163.64

VL REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:-NIL

S1. no. | Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount
' Managing | Whole Time Total
Director Director/Manager
1. | Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained - - -
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax
Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) - - -

Income-tax Act, 1961

(¢) Profits in lieu of salary under - - -
section 17{2) Income-tax Act, 1961

2. | Stock Option - ‘ - | -
3. | Sweat Equity - - -
4. | Commission - - -
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. | Others, please specify (Bonus) - - -

.,oal(A\ - - -

l \.eilmo as per the Act l *
|

* In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder and the
Circulars issued thereunder, the remuneration paid to the Managing Directors ard the Executive Directors
is within the ceilings prescribed.

B. Remuneration to other directors: (% in million)
| Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
1. Independent Directors Mr. Mitul Shah | Mr.Sanjay Shah

¢ Fee for attending board / 0.22 0.22 0.44

committee meetings

o Commission - A - -

|
| e Others, rlease specify - -
Total (1) A 0.22 0.22

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate identity Number:; U67120MH1997PLC285490
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925 ‘
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2. Other Non-Executive Directors -

» Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

e Commission

* Others, please specify

| Total (2)

| Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration(A+E)

i Overall Ceiling as per the Acﬁ

!
]

Note: The total snunageria

I remuneration within the ceilings prescribed.

C. Remuneration te Key Maragerial Persoanel other than MD/Manager/WTD :( (2. ir million)

Sl ! Particulars of
no. | Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO
Mr. Arun
l Kumar Nayyar

Cro
Mr. Vineet
Mahajan

Company Total
Secretary
Ms. Sudipta

Majamdar

L. | Gross salary

(@) d?f’aw as per
provisions contained
finsec. 1 /(1) of L‘hE
: %,hmo me-tax Act, 1961

19.50

11.74

0.70 31.94

(b;'1 Vaiue of perquisites
u/s 17{2) lncome-tax
| Act, 1961

- 0.03vs

- C.029¢

(<) Profits in Licu of
| salary under section
g 17(3) Income-tax Act,
19

Steck Option

XY

Sweat Equity

4. | Comimission
-as % of profit
_ | - others, specify. . -

%1

H 21 .
i Oihiers, please

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Corporate |dentity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285450 ) :
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VIL. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of | Brief Details of Penalty / Authorit | Appeal
the Description | Punishment/Compound |y [RD/ made, if
Companies ing fees imposed NCLT/ any
Act - COURT] | (give
- - ' Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edeiweiss Retail Finance Limited

Shaliree Mimani Krishnaswamy Siddharth
Director Director
DiIN: 07404075 DIN: 02463804

Mumnibai, May 23, 2013
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (ERFL)
FY2017-18

Management Discussion & Analysis Report

O ECOMNDIY: BEVIEW AN

Rl S Wi

FY18 was one of the better years for global economy
and markets. Accelerating growth, easy liquidity, and
contained inflation resulted in strong rally in risk
assets witi: low volatility. This was in sharp contrast
to FY17, which sprang many surprises such as Brexit,
Trump being elected as US president etc.

Globa: eccnomy continued to build on the cyclical
turnaround which started in FYi7. Economic growth
became more broacd-based resulting in  an
improvement in globai trads, industrial activity,
gloal FMis busmess confidence. While, the global
growth  remiained  sirong, the  rising  trade
protesticnism s coming to fore again. While Fy17
saw 1aore  of  pciitical’ rhetoric  on  trade
protectionism, soine policy action was visile during
FYL® and cny aggressive steps towards thiz can

underming glohal growth.

For India ..as weli, the improvements ‘n Giobal
economy  resulted i an ' improved  export
peiformancel FY18 was also a more eventiul year for
Indiz.with ratorms continuing to take place: The
~inurh awaited G3T was finally implemented in .the
year aind ‘:‘ndufzh the Imulermentation did jead io
initiabhiccups, things are getting better now.

Anstaer area y.here s:sm..cam progress has beer
mace ig taud:r‘e the issue of Non- Pﬁrforrrmtg',{\.ss,w
(NPAS} and hJ hank re-capitarisation. insnlvenry
Reso.ut;on Board was setup, isrge NP4 accounts
were identified & pricritizad and -action startad to

rescive the NPA prctlem. Re-capitaiisation funds of

INR  2.1th - were aioidied to meet. up the
requirement of capital deficient PSU banks

Injpact, of conﬁriued Ireforms s visible i an
improvement in indi_a"s,':rank of ease cf deing
husiness and snvéreign rating tipgrade (first in iast
14 yearsj. This shoubr over titme yield benefits in
terms vf higher FEFand lGwer cost of capital:

t

LjPage oo
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Corporate ldentity Number: U57120MH1997PLC285490
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As far as business cycle conditions are concerned,
things are on the improving path. Domestic economy
is recovering from the initial hiccups of GST, credit
growth has started to improve, inflation remains
benign. and broadly speaking fiscal also remains
comfortable. The rise in crude oil prices does pose
some downside risk to India’s macro ervironment. in
terms of flows in FY18, FD! flows continued to
remain stable at ~USD36bn and portfolio flows have
remained strong at ~USD22bn, significantly higher
than ~USD8bn in FY17.

On the monetary side, RBI maintained its neutraj
stance throughout the year. Hence, it cut rates only
by 2Ebps, despite FY18 CPI being ~3.5% {50bps lower
than its medium term targat). INR rerained strong
during most of the year, with average FY18 INR/USD
rate at 64.50 compared tc FY17 average of £7.00.

Oversll Outlook

Overall the macro-fundamentals of the econory
remain in comfortable zcne albeit with increasing
risk from rising crude oil prices. Econamic coanditions
have impioved ainid rebound in exporis and
government’s push towards infrastructure spending.

Gcing ahead we Lelieve growth trzjectory to remain
strong and improve further baced on. rebound in
exports and stabilisation of GST regime. fural
aconcimy snouid also get a fillip with IMD forecasting
FY19 to be tine third consecutive year of normal
monsoon. Most importanily, we oxpect Banking
sectoir NFA problems, which.have bezn §‘|aunrii‘1g the
economy for l2st 7 years, to finally end cwing o 2
auicker resdlution of stressed assets ard PSU hank

recapitansation.

WD DEVELY

Commercial Credit Markoes

After a subdued growth in Indian banking sector in
£Y17 (non-focd credit at sub 5% leveis), creci
growth started to improve in FY1§ with non-fosd
credit al 13% lavels. This should further imsirove in
Y19 owéng to

NPA1ssues, ana governmen

PSU bank rczéapi’talicat‘dh, reso‘vin'J

©:+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925
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Given the magnitude of the asset quality issue in
banks, the government has pro-actively worked with
RBI on the resolution of stressed assets. RB! also
strictly dealt with all the banks, both in public and
private sector, which showed a divergence in their
asset quality compared to the assessment made by
RBl. Now that banks have started providing
adequately for distressed assets and IBC has coime in
play, resolution and turnaround should happen over
the next couple of years. As the economy continues
to recover, re-capitalisation of banks will help
provide capital for bank credit growth in future.

MBFC lndustry

While commercial banks continued to remain
dominant source of credit in India, the NBFC sector
has been steadily gaining systemic importance with
increase in assets from less than 11% of banking
assets in FY09 to over 14% now. Though the banking
sector was beset with-worsening asset quality in
FY17, NBFCs could restrict the impact in their
portfolios due to their ability to respond quickly as
welias avéiiability of a higher collateral cover.

The early part of fiscal year saw an interim blip in
their performance tollowing demonetisation, but
recovery foilowing that has also been very swift and
the situation is-back to normal. Indeed, NBFCs have
emerged gven stronger .post this. The growing
relevance of the NBFCs also highlights the emphasis
of risk management in the sector. Going ahead,
comfortanle capital adequacy, control on asset
quality and conservative liquidity management will
continue to provice comfort to the credit profile of

While corporate growth continued to be under
pressure, retail segment continues to maintain
momentum. Most of the NBFCs and HFCs continue
to scale up their portfolio focusing on housing
finance, LAP, SME finance and consumer finance.
Withir. these segrents housing continues to de well
and also entails huge potential given a) goverament
/ regulator thrust, and b) supporting demographic
factors etc. V

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
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The other scalable area is SME finance. Looking at

Indian market, SMEs continue to be under-banked
and NBFCs are increasingly turning towards this
sector. Thus, the potential for NBFCs and HFCs to
scale up their business remains significant.

EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE
LIMITED OVERVIEW

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (ERFL) was formerly
known as Affluent Dealcom Private Limited (ADL)
which was incorporated on February 18, 1997. it was
an NBFC registered with the Reserve Bank of India
bearing Registration number 05.03052 authorised to
commence/carry on the business of a non-banking
financial institution subject to the conditions given in
the Certificate. The Company was acquired by
Edelcap Securities Limited (ESL) and was converted
into a public limited ccmpany with the name
changed to “Affluent Dealcom Limited” on receipt of
a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent to
change in status on January 1, 2014 from the
Registrar of Companies, West Bengal. Subsequently
the Company’s name was changed to “Edelweiss
Retail Finance Limited” pursuant to fresh certificate
of Incorporation dated January 6, 2014,

Subsequently, ERFL obtained a Certificate of
Registration dated October 14, 2014 bearing
Registration no. B-05.03052 issued by the Reserve
Bank of India under section 45|A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, to ccmmence/carry on the
business of a non banking finencial institution
without accepting public deposits subject to the
conditions  mentioned in  the Certificate of
Registration.

The registered office of the Company was shifted
from the state of West Bengal to Manharashtra
pursuant to Certificate of Registraticn of Regional
Director order for Change of State dated September
2, 2016 and fresh Certificate of Registration dated
fanuary 4, 2017 bearing Registration no. B-13.02149
has been issued by the Reserve Bank of India,
Mumbai.

It is a systemically important NBFC (NBFC — ND — SI).

Registered Ofﬁce Edelweiss House, Off. C.5T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra ©+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925
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We are parr of the Edelweics Group which is onz of
India’s prominent financial services organization
having businesses organized around three broad
business groups ~ Credit businesses including Retail
Credit, Ccrporate Credit and Distressed Credit,
Franchise & Advisory businesses including Wealth
Management, Asset Management and Capitai
Markets, and insurance including Life Insurance and
General insurarice.,

Today, nr--_ is @ Rs.21 billion asset base combany
with presence in ail the significani areas of retail
finance businesses -including SME. finance, Loan
against Proserty and Rural Financa.

FINANCIAL PERF ORI‘/AAN(,E
HIGHLIGH re - a

A;‘summr;_ry‘gf_ cur FY18 financii highlights is as

under;

otal Revenue Rs.2,676. mitlion (Rs.2;535
C mittign for FY17Y, up 45% ‘

s Profit arter Tax Rs.317 ‘million (R5.319
" miton for FY17Y, down 1%

-t

%

« .- hetwoith as per Balance Sheet Ks.4,347
- miilion {Rs:3,135 million at the end of FY17)
. Return on Average Equity 8.62% (10.88 %
o for FY17)
o EP5RS.8.71 (Rs.30.08 for FY17) (FV Rs 10
DEY 3N3re) N o
¢ Zeok Velue per Share Rk..37.50 {FV Rs.10

ver sharel

Fund Based Revenue

Qur -fund-based - businesses earned revenue .of
Rs.3,404 million for FY18 (Rs.2,348. million for FY17),
up 45%. Gut of this, interast income was R£.2,381
miliion (Rs.2,33& miliion: for FY17) which is aiso up
45% YoY. Thus, aimest ali of the fund based revenue
comprise; ot intarest earnings.

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited )
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Agency Fee & Commission

Our agencv fee & comimission revenue was Rs.272
million for the year, compared to 85.187 millien in
FY17, up 45%.

Net Revenue

For NBFCs, like banking industry, the concept of Net
Revenue {ret of interast cost) is ar.other way of
analyzing performance. This is becausa interest cost,
as with all Banks and large NBFCs/HFCs, should
refiect above the expenses line. On @ net revenue
bhasis, our Agency fee & commission for EY18 was
Rs.272 miilicn (Rs.187 million for FY17) and Fund
based et revenﬁe, i.2, net of interest cost, ail the
interest cost being for fund based fevenue, was
Rs.1,803 million (Rs.1,187 million for FY17). Thus the
total . net revenue for FY18 was Re.2,075 million
(Rs.1,374 million for FY17), up 51%.

Cur total“ custs for FY18 was R5.3..‘19b miHi'c‘"
» Up 56%. Within cur tota!

cests, ooe'a ing expences accounted for I 1,; 1
siilion in FY1i§ \R" 656 mitlion for rYl/) as we

(Rs i,"zm million in FY1

coitinied to invest in building our IJusncss and
infrastructure. Qur mp.u/ep expenses lr'creused
from Rs.216 millicn in FYI/ to Rs. 340 mitlion in FYi8
as we adrded about 301 employees during the year
taking oui total headcount i 525 at the'end of FY1g
As regards interest expense which grew 38% from
Rs.1,162 million in FY17 to Rs.1,501 miilisn in FY1e,
our borrowings at the end of FY18 were Rs.26, /Qf
riliicn compa.ed to R5.20,860 miilion at Lnr_ end of
FY1 , up 147%
higher bormw'mJ Aauring FY18 resnlted ir increasa in

fhe cc alc up of our acsets size viz a

he mtm esf cost

Our. Profit after Tax for £Y18 was Rs.317 million
compared 0 Rs.313 million for FY17, down 1%.

Qur Profit before Tak margin tor FY%£ was 12% and
Profit after vax margin 9% compared ‘to 14% and
13% respectively for FY17. Wiargins have suffered
during FY18 due to a higher costs necessifated due
10 investment in buii ding infrzstructure ancd hi r'n"
Hmnioyees for'future growth.

Registered Gffice: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai- 400098 Maharashtra @*91 22 4»009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925
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Balance Sheet Gearing

We believe that a strong balance sheet imparts
unigue ability to our cocmpany to be able to meet
demands of our clients and be able to raise debt
capital whenever required. ERFL has a total net
worth of Rs.4,347 million as at the end of FYi8
compared to Rs.3,135 million at the end of FY17.
Amount of debt on the Balance Sheet as on March
31, 2017 was Rs.26,797 million (Rs.10,860 million as
on March 31, 2016}, a Gearing Ratio of 6.16 times.
The comfortable leverage allows us enough
headroom toc continue to grow and invest in
business. The gross Balance Sheet size at the end of
FY18 was Rs.34,010 million corﬁpared to Rs.15,517
million a year ago.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE ;
HIGHLIGHTS

Brief highlights of our business performance in FY18
are as under:

Credit business of ERFL broadly offers SME Finance,

~Loan against Property and Rural Finance. These
- preducts provide us with the intended diversification

in our-business thereby reducing the concentration
risk. Retail segment loans also provide the desired
potentai for scaling up in a vast underpenetrated
market lika India.

Total credit ‘book of ERFL stands &t Rs.32,447 million
at the end of this year compared to Rs.14,737 million
at the end of previous year, up 120%.

The compasition of Credit Book is as under:
(Rs. in million)

AN EXURE B
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Equipment Finance 1,139 624

Construction Finance . 1,658 -

Others 55 140
Total Loan Book V 32,447 14,737

Product/Szgment Book size as | Boock size as

‘ on March on March

' 31, 2018 31, 2017

Loan against Property 9,354 4,536

f SME Loans 18,603 9,300
Rural Loans 1,638 137
A4lPuge

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
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Our Net Interest Margin (N!M) on the credit book for
FY18is 7.38%.

As a result of strict adherence to conservative credit
appraisal, constant collateral monitoring and best-in-
class risk management, ERFL has managed to control
its asset quality satisfactorily. Our Gress NPLs were
at 1.07% and Net NPLs at 0.95% at the and of FY18
compared to Gross NPLs at 0.42% and Net NPLs at
0.36% at the end of FY17. During FY18, a few of our
borrowers did face some cash flow issues due to
slew return of growth, resuiting in ircrease in our
gross non performing lozns to Rs.346 million at the
end of FY18 compared to Rs.62 million at the end of
FY17. Our Provision Cover Ratio as per the RBI
regulations as on March 31, 2018 was 11%
compared to 14% as at the end of FY17. We continue
to focus on risk management and achieving growth
in the book without diluting risk standards.

SME Finance

Smail and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) are extremely
assential to the Indian Ecoremy. They account for
alimost 40% of India’s domestic production, around
50% of the total expcrts and 45% of the indtistrial
empluoyment. They ate also the second largest
empioyers of manpower, after agriculture. Thus they
need large amounts of capital to run their
cperaticons, which they acquire through the financing
provided hy NBFCs, Banks and the Government.

Ecelweiss launchad SME finance during FY12 as this
sector is underfinanced and credit piays a crucial role
in the growth of this sector. The business currently
operates in 88 major locations which account for a
large part of the addressable SME market. The SME
loans book size at the end of FY18 in ERFL is
Rs.1&,603 million compared to Rs,
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the end of FY17, a growth of 100%. Eguipment
Finance loan book size grew 83% from Rs.624
miilion in F¥17 to Rs.1,133 million in FY18.During the
year, we sigrificantly expandad our footprint across
india by taking the totat number of ERFL branches to
88 at the end of FY18 coinpared to 17 at the end of
FY17. The total numbker of our SME clients as at the
end of FY18 was ~12,750 compared to ~6,29C a year
ago. We have aiso stepped up our hiring for. this
busiriess and are looking at significant growtih in SME
iending business going forward.

Givzr thesizeable contribution of SMVEs to the Indian
Fcomomy, this business oresents a  significant
opportunity to buiid:a highly profitable and scaiabiz
business.

Loans against Properiv.

Loan against Preperty: (LAP) is a convenient way af
borrowing by saiaried or seif — employed persons
ahd SMEs and NBFCs account for a major chunk of
the market shafe in this” space. The loan'is

ccllateratised by either residential or cemmercial
pronzity and interest rares on such Ioans are lower

aS COI‘I»UEl-‘ ¢ o Lersoral ioans. ThUS OOI’I()\NEIS Can

gzl F"nc.s aganm the »a!ue of the coliateral at .a

el

relativaly - lower interest rate as compared to

persrma! loans

Eoefw; s started LAP business as 2 part of Retail
Finance businéss in FY12 and ke LAP loans book size
in ERFL st the end of FY18 is Rs.9,354 iviilion
comparec to Rs.4,536 million at the end of FY17, up
106% )

Rural Fliuance

Eaelwelss diversified it'retail loans product portiolio

by foraying intc Rural Finance in December 2013 as a
part of the stretegy toserve all the sections of the
society. As at the eng of FYIR, we provided Rural
Finance in the natu.'"e of Micro Finance across
bereficiarias in sreund 3 O"Oi— vnlmges in and around
TamilNam and varicus :)*her states. Cur ﬁura!
Finance portfolio serves over 3,33,000 benreficiaries
at the end o FY18. These loans are provided in
partnership with various channel partners. The Rural
Finance- book " in ERFL at the end of FY18 was

5{Pcns
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38 million compared to Rs.237 miillion at the

(<3}

st days, ERFL hag recegnised this and

From its eariie
has aiways focused its energies in creating a strong
nalance sheet. A strong capital base provides us the
freedom and ability to deploy capital for scaling up
. our business. A strong balance sheat also enables us

easier access to markei borrowings o tie hack of a
strong credit rating. It also helps in confidence
Luilding exercise vrith our fenders.

Changing Lliabilities Profile in Sync with Asset
Profile

ERFL has over the period of last two vears embarked
on a strategy of reducing dependence on group
borrowings, d*versn‘y its sources of borrowing and
increase liabilities in the six months ta five years
bucket thereby bringing dowr dependence on short
term boriowings. Towards this end, FY18 witnessed
its maiden re*ail bonds issuance of Rs.5 Lillion thus
becoming the third ccmpany of Edelwicss group to
raise public debt. in additior, FRFL also raisec Rs,
1.7C Lilior of subordinatad debt diring FY15 to
shore” up its Tier 2 capital. ERFL also cortracted
around Rs.10.35 biliion of madium to long term debt
by wav of Bank te:m loan. ERFL’s total mediura w0
Iong term liabilities uontracted durmg FY18 stand at
Rs. 17 96 killion.

We maintain @ matched ALM as we keep changing
tha profite of our lizbilities in sync with the assets
being booked:

Capital ! hdequacy Ratio | o

As pér the Non Bahking Fnanciél Comparies
Prudential Norms stipulated by Reserve ‘Bank, all
NBECs~ND=Si are required to maintan a minimum
Capital to Risk-weigited ‘Assets Ratio {“CRAR”) of
15%. ERFL's CRAR as on March 331, 2318 was 16.26%
with a Tier | ‘Ratio of 11.89% compared to CRAR of
18.67% anc a Tier | Ratio of 17.90% ac cn March 31,
2017,

Regnstered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @+91 22 4009 4400 @ +91 22 4019 4925
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OPPORTUNITIES

The strides India has made in the last year on the
structural front with major reforms like GST,
‘nsolvency and Bankruptcy Code (iBC) and RERA
have heiped create a sound base for the growth
trajectory going forward. The government has done
well to continue its reforms agenda after Jan Dhan
and Housing for All. All of these steps have been
roundly appreciated in the global arena witn the
improvement in the Ease of Doing Business ranking
as well as the ratings upgrade by Moody’s. The
global economy is als¢ continuing to recover. These
daveicpments augur weli for growth of financial
services and credit in India for firms like curs and
offer immense opportunities in FY19 and beyond as
undey:
s Indian economy is already st'abilising. and
various prejactions for growth by World Bank cr
IMF etc. indicate that India will grow at 7%+ in
FY19 and continu2 to .outperform otner
ecoromies.  This Would open up  vast
'oupfu lumt:e< ]O' us to grow our credit nortfolio.
% A weicome shift of access to credit from
oy farge busmess houses to _SMES, MFls, middle
ang  low income groups has led to
...V:"nqudUSdUoﬂ of credit opemng up a vast

eciion ¢f eh gible borrowers for credit

utions. This-augurs well for companies like
ours wl*i"" have aerarJy secured a ..trong
,wt.rwu inietail credit seginent.

* Social, MO..)hny, r,:.ng!yuys and Cloud Computing
(SMAC) . are  the _emerging trends  in
techhoh.a;,y. Government initiatives in 1espect of
Digital indi and_;no\!& towards tforma: and
cashless econemy will also open up new client
segments and newer denvery channels wh.ch

finms iike ours can tap for future growth.
THREATS'

Wh{.,,LhL opporu...:tleb lcmdscape is promising, the
following . tn»'eatSA could.. dampen the growth of
financiai services sector in india:

e Giobal ecciicimy zouid slip into turmuil if the
current trade and tariifs war between USA and

(,h_r-;a intensifias,

. Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
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* Slower thzn expected recovery of macre-

economy, domestically as well as giobally, or
delay in revival of capex cycle can impede the
growth.

* Impending Lok Sabha and a number of State
elections could lead to oopuiist measures by the
government impacting fiscal discipline with
consequent effect on the domestic economy.

e While the monsoon is predicted to be normal
this year, any unforeseen failure of the monsoon
can hinder the recovery in rural economy.

OUTLCOK & STRATEGY

The Indian economy is back on the growth pafh
having regained its 7%+ growth rate, ctructural
reforms, notably GST, are starting to show resuits
and corporate recovery is sceing green shoots as
well, m'dst all this, long-term trends which will
gropei India’s growth continue te strengthen.
Deniocrat_isation of credit, financiatization of assets
2nd privatisation of the eccnomy will ‘cgether feac
to a compounding effect, ! turn doubiing India’s
GOP from USD 2.5 tritlion in 2018 to USD 5 trillion i
2025, Finencia! Services including credit will continue
0 5e a standout performer in this golcen age of
comgpounding.

li this significant growth scenario, we are well-
geared to take advantage of the. unfolding
oprortun:ity. Qur retail credit products have gainad
traction. With the foundaiion we have laid, we are
weil placed to achieve good srowth in the years to
come by fcliowing® cur time tested st;'al:eg',' of
fecusing nn key vectors in -our journey.in.future --
people imanagement, © cost  managementi, risk
manzgement, technclogy, sirplicity and cusiomer
ohsession.

ENTERPRISE GROUPS

Tre business of mrL is contw!le(l anu supported by
a core of Cnterprise Groups that p.ov:de(:on;:ste‘nt
qua!xty'an rigour to | ey pracesss functione. Various
steps taken by us to, improve ef:!caCy of Enterpnse

functions are detsfied below.

Registered Office: Edelweiss-House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @+91 22 4.009‘4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925
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The business activities of ERFL are exposed to
various risks that are either inherent to the business
or have- their genesis in changes to external
environment

Risk management has been core to Edelweiss cince
we began our journey. By embedding risk
management into the DNA of the organisation, we
ensure that the first line of defence starts frem each
individual.

Respect for Risk is central to every business decision
at Edelweiss. Simple questions are necessary to be
answered before every decision i.e. "ls it worth it?”
and "Can we afford it?”. To support the risk strategy
and effective risk management, we have built an in-
house “Eight-risk framework” coupled with “Four-
tiered risk governance structure” which protects
Edelweiss and ensure that there are enough
defences availabie te control al! types of risk events.

Itis the conistant endeavour of Edelweiss to heighten

. Tisk  awareness and  effectiveness of  risk

management, We share'the same ethos in regard to
Risk as our parent gro‘up.‘

We have the business risk team within our company
which,.ensures implementation cf risk philosophy
and practices at business level. Our risk team also
ensuresv"that necessary action is taken to make
certain that . identified risks are adequately
addressed.

deals in multiple asset classes and client
segments and is thus exposed to various risks that
can be broadly ciassified as credit risk, market risk
and operational risk.

Credit Risk

The credit risk framework of ERFL ensures prior and
periodic comprehensive assessment of every client,
counterparty and collateral. Exposure limits are
sanctioned to counterparties based on their credit
worthiness. Credit risk monitoring mechanism
ensures that exposure to clients is diversified and
remzins within stipulated limits. Etfective credit risk

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate ldentity Number: US7120MH1997PLC285450
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management has enabled us to steer through

envirenmental stress conditions without any major
impact.

Market Risk

ERFL faces the usual market risks on the liabilities as
well as assets side. In order to monitor such market
risk, a comprehensive set of reports and limits has
been put in place that track positions, value at risk
and duraticn cf assets. The risk framework ensures
that the risks are monitored and necessary timely
action is taken for eveiy single instance of breach, in
case they occur.

Additionally, the asset liability mismatch and
Eoliateral margins are regularly assessed. Liquidity
requirements are closely monitored and necessary
care is taken to maintain sufficient liquidity cushion
for maturing liabilities and for any unforeseen
reguirements. We also ensure diversification in
source of borrowing to redice dependence on a
singie source. We also pro-actively modify our
liabilities profile in sync with the changing assets
profile to ensure that we do not carry any material
asset liability mismatch.

Operational Risk

Operational risk frarnework of ERFL is designed to
balance and check operational risk at key
manifestation points. In addition to defining new
processes, we constantiy review ali critical processes.
to proactively identify weak controls and strengthen
the same.

As per tha Companies Act, 2013, the ccmpanies
need to ensure that they have laid down internal
financial controls and that such centrols are
adequate and were operating effectively. Towards
this end, we at ERFL have always adopted a risk
balancing approach. ERFL has an Internal Contro}

System, well ccmmensurate with its size, scale,
nature and complexfty of operations. The Ccmpany
conducts its internal audit within the parameters of
regulatery framework including preparation and
execution of annual internai audit plan,

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400058,Maharashtra @+91 22 4008 4400 ® +81 22 4019 4925
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internz! Audit

Internal Audit follows Generally Accepted Audit
Practices, Internal Audit Standards, analytical
procedures etc. and ensures compliance with section
138 of the Companies Act 2C13 read with Rule 13 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Internal Control -

Out liiternal Control Procedures inciude monitoring
comcliance with relevant matlers covered under
section 124{1)(e) cf the Companies Act 2013.
Internal Control Policies

Edelweiss  Group has institutionalised a strong
cormipliance cuiture acregs all the Business Group
reccgnising tha_t transparency and trust amongst all
its stakeholders can be achicved only through this.
We share the common resources of Compliance
Group of Edelweiss thag ensures compliance with all

the applicable laws or policies.

Er:ei;weiss‘ groun is a cross-cultural mosaie and our
streng“;h‘ jies in 0ur);.d‘iversiiy everywhere, within
teamns and ac;’oss‘bu.c,.inesses. Qur diversity makes us
a ;tronger o_rganizalio;r‘. by bringing in .fresh ideas,
perspectivesy, experienceé and Tfostering a truly
\?O”iib\'.)}fﬂﬁ'\/& vagkpiac:. The sense of ownership
each one of us has dispiayed over the years is a
tesra_rri”é‘ht 10 the culture of entrepreneurship we
have tried to fosier in tdelweiss. We share the
Edelweiss group HR philosophy.
Higriights of our YR initiatives in Fr18 are as under:
e '\%'A;f ciitded Y15 v{.!llg 4 Iolal headesurt of
525, up fiom 224 as of March 31, 2017, as
we signiticantly scaled up our hiring to grow

our husiness,

RS
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e As growth comes back graZuaily, we have

added peopie at all levels. We also added
number of employees foir our enteprise
groups tc meet the challenges of increasing
scale and complexity of our business.

Amongst our-much strength, we must count our
perfermanice appraisal system, which has helped to
instil fairness and development orientation in the
organisation. The process of Perfermance Appraisal
is based on evaluations against pre-set and clearly
docurmented goals and has stood the test of time.

In tloday’s digital worid, a customer has multipie
opticns. Groveth \vi!l’accrue to organisations which
succeed in giving & truly memorable customer
experience. At Edeiweiss, Customer Experience (CX)
is regarded as a kev pillar of business success.
Traditionaily, Edelweiss has {Gken a problem-solving
based - approach to impreving CX across its
businesses, focusing on: -
© e Whois the Customer?
"o Whatis their Need?
e How can we address that Need in the
. hest possib!s'.vay? _ o
This was taptured in our group mofta “Supo Samjho
Suljhac”,

With this group philosophy in sight, we continued to
buiid a culture of customer-centric thinking across
ERFL. To drive this agarda, we have'also institutad
wide ranging corporate s=ructure changes asross the
group. Through these efforts, we are responding to
evclving custorier needs, ond institutivnalizing
these procasses across the organisation, to ensure a
superlative experience’ for &l our customer
segments, thrcughout-the value chain.

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Mzharashtra @©+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925

www.edelweissretailfin.com
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,,,,,, iy et e oo Rating
Bank Facilities * CRISIL AA/Stable
Long Term Bark Facilitias [ICRA] AA T
Long Term Debt Prcgrﬁr“ma BWR AA
Lonngerrv. Debt Programme : BWR AA+ ‘
LongTerm cht Programme ' } A CARE AA
Long Terﬁ:bmé.bt Pr&éﬁé}"lkne CRISIL AA/StaB;g """"""""""""""""""
Long Term Debt Programme [ICRA] AA -
AAAAAAAAAAAA L“ong Term Debt Programme SMERA AA/Stable
Short Term Debt Programme CARE Al+
~ Short Term Debt Programme CRISILAL+
Shoirt Term Debt Programme” ’ [ICRA] Al+

_ Ali ratings are cuirent as on'March 31, 2018.

.o .
-

Cautionzry Statemerit

tatenzents mede in ‘this Manage ment ulbr‘leblOn and Analysis may contain ceriain forward loomno Statements
“hased 0N vaious aqsmnptlom on the ERFL and Fdelweiss Group's present and future business strategies and the
envitonment in which it operates. Actua! results -miay differ substantially or materially fem those expressed or iinglied
‘due to sisk and Lrcartaintios . These risks and uncertainties include the effect of ecoromic and politicai conditions in
India o}:d abroad, volafility in interest rates and in the securities rnarkel, nsw regulations and Gaovemment palicies
that mdv dmpact the company's businesses as well ac. the ability to impiement its strategies.” The informatfion
contained hereirt is' &S of the dale réferenced and Edsiweiss does not undertake any obiigation to updafe these -
statements. PF L has obiamed all markel .data and other information from sources beiieved fo be reliable or its
internal esinnafes. altnough its accuracy or complereness canno! be guaranfeed. The presentztion relaling to
busiress wise financial performence, balance sheet, assa! books of ERFL and industry data herein is
reclazsifeceqronpad hased on Management esfimates and may nnt direetly correspond o puplisind date. The

Aumbers have afso peen reunded off in the m'oresr of easier uncerstanding.

R e - B . . . .
. [

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors ‘ -

' R o C Edelweiss Ratail Finance Limited

2halinee wiimani . . Krishnaswamy Siddharth
. . Director -~ - Director
o T T oM a7agas?s T i 02453804 -

~

S| Page
¥

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off, C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098, Maharashira @+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925

www.edelweissretailfin.com
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ANNEXURE C

Form No. AOC-2

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred fo in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm'’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Not
applicable

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transactions:

(¢) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions:

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

(€} Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions:

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board:

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general ineeting as required under first
provise to section 188

2. Details of material confracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis-
(Rs. Million)

3! S Name(s) of the related | Nature of | Duration of | Salient terms | Date(s) of | Amou |
i No. | party and nature of | contracts/arr | the contracts | of the | approval | nt paid |
i relationship angements/tr | / contracts  or | by the | as
Lo ansactions arrangement | arrangements | Board, if | advanc
R s/transactio | or transactions | any es, if
P | ns including the any
x value, if any
! :
Lol @____ (b) (© (d) (e) (®)
'l | Edelweiss ' - Unsecured 1 year ' | '
| Commodities Services Loan
Limited
i fellow Subsidiary i ' ‘ ' *N.A.
Loan taken X 5171.46 : Nil
| Loan repaid X4628.94 i
2. ! Edelweiss  Housing ! 1 year NA
i Finance Limited Service Fees | 0.05 Nil
(Fellow Subsidiary) 1 | ' L

~These transactions were approved by Andit Committee.

Mumbaij, May 23, 2018 for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
' Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

fr

~

Shalinee Mimani Krishnaswamy Siddharth
Director Director

(DIN: 07404075) (DIN: 02463804)

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate tdentity Number: U67120MH1957PLC285490 : -
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @+91 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925

www.edelweissretailfin.com
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Policy on Related Party Transactions

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
CIN: U67120MH1997PLC285490
Regd. Office: Edelweiss House,

Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina,
Mumbai-400098,
Maharashtra
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1. Preamble

Related party transactions can present a potential or actual conflict of interest which may be
against the best interest of the company and its shareholders. Considering the requirements for
approval of related party transactions as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)
read with the Rules framed there under and Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by the
Reserve Bank of India, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
(the “Company” or “ERFL”), has adopted the Policy on Related Party Transactions (“the
Policy™).

This Policy is intended to ensure due and timely identification, approval, disclosure and
reporting of transactions between the Company and any of its Related Parties in compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations as may be amended from time to time.

2. Objective
The provisions of this Policy are designed to govern the approval process and disclosure
requirements to ensure transparency in the conduct of Related Party Transactions in the best
interest of the Company and its shareholders and to comply with the statutory provisions in

this regard.

3. Definitions
The Related Party shall be as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder and the applicable Accounting Standards.

“Arm’s Length Transaction” means a transaction between two related parties that is conducted

as if they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest.

“ Relative” means relative as detined under Section 2(/7/) ot the Companies Act, 2015 .A person
shall be deemed to be the relative of another if he or she is related to another in any one of the
following manner:
i.  Member of the Hindu Undivided Family
ii.  Spouse
iii.  Father
iv.  Mother
v. Son
vi.  Son’s wife
vii.  Daughter
viii.  Daughter’s husband
ix.  Brother
x.  Sister.
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Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) mean key managerial personnel as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013 and includes-

i.  the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer or the manager and in their

absence, a Whole-time Director;

ii.  the Company Secretary;

iii.  the Chief Financial Officer; and

iv.  Such other person as may be specified as KMP from time to time.

“Associate Company” in relation to another company, means a company in which that other
company has a significant influence, but which is not a subsidiary company of the company

having such influence and includes a joint venture company.

Explanation — For the purposes of this clause, “significant influence” means control of at least twenty
per cent of total share capital, or of business decisions under an agreement.

“Related Party Transactions” means any transaction involving transfer of resources, services or
obligations between the Company and a Related Party, regardless of whether a price is charged
and includes -

a. Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

b. Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying property of any kind;

c. Leasing of property of any kind;

d. Availing or rendering of any services;

e. Appointment of any agent for the purchase or sale of goods, materials, services or property;

f. Such related party's appointment to any office or place of profit in the Company or associate

Company;

g. Providing or obtaining guarantees and collaterals.

(The above is an indicative list and not an exhaustive one)

Explanation: A transaction with a Related Party shall be deemed to include single transaction or a

group of transactions in a contract.

“Material Related Party Transactions” means any transaction/transactions to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds 10% of
the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of

the Company.

4. Review and approval of the Related Party Transactions

1. The Audit Committee (the Committee) of the Board' shall review and, if considered
appropriate, approve the Related Party Transactions. While considering the Relat
Transactions, the following information shall be presented to the Committee:
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(i) the name of the Related Party and the basis on which such person or entity is a
Related Party;
(ii) the Related Party’s interest in the transactions, including the Related Party’s position
or relationship with, or ownership of, any entity that has an interest in the transactions;
(iii) the approximate monetary value of the transactions of the Related Party’s interest in
the transactions;
(iv) general description of the transactions, including material terms and conditions, if
any;
(v) in the case of a lease or other transactions, providing for periodic payments or
installments, the aggregate amount of all periodic payments or installments to be made;
(vi) in the case of loan, the aggregate amount of loan and the rate/amount of interest
payable on such loan;
(vii) in case of guarantees issued, the aggregate amount of guarantees and commission,
if any, to be payable on such guarantees;
(viii) an assessment of whether the transactions are on terms that are comparable with
the terms available to unrelated parties or to the employees generally; and
(ix) any other material information regarding the transactions or the Related Party’s

interest in the transactions.

The transactions shall be approved only if it is determined by the Committee that such
transactions are:
(i) in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders;
(ii) to be entered into by the Company (or its subsidiary or associate entity) on terms that
are comparable to those that would be obtained in arm’s length transactions with
unrelated parties; and
(iii) In the ordinary course of the business of the Company.

Ordinary course of business means the usual transactions, customs and practices undertaken by the
Company to conduct its business operations and activities and includes all such activities which the
company can undertake as per Memorandum & Articles of Association.

2. No member of the Committee shall participate in the review, consideration or approval of
any Related Party Transactions with respect to which such member or any of his/her

relative is a Related Party.

3. If any material information with respect to such transactions shall change subsequent to the
Committee’s review of such transactions, the Committee shall be presented with the

updated information for its approval.
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4. If any additional Related Party Transactions is proposed to be entered into subsequent to
the Committee’s approval, management shall present such transactions to the Committee

for approval before entering into such transactions.

Approval of the Board

If the Committee determines that a Related Party Transaction should be brought before the
Board, or if the Board in any case elects to review any such matter or it is mandatory under any
law for Board to approve the Related Party Transaction, then the Board shall consider and
approve the Related Party Transaction at a meeting and the considerations set forth above shall
apply to the Board’s review and approval of the matter, with such modification as may be
necessary or appropriate under the circumstances.

Omnibus Approval of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee may grant omnibus approval for Related Party Transactions proposed to
be entered into by the company subject to the following conditions:
i) The Committee shall lay down the criteria for granting the omnibus approval in line with the
Policy and such approval shall be applicable in respect of transactions which are repetitive in
nature;
(ii) The Committee shall satisfy itself the need for such omnibus approval and that such
approval is in the interest of the Company;
(iii) Such omnibus approval shall specify:-
a) the name/s of the related party, nature of transaction, period of transaction,
maximum amount of transaction that can be entered into,
b) the indicative base price / current contracted price and the formula for variation in
the price if any, and
c) such other conditions as the Audit Committee may deem fit;
Provided that where the need for Related Party Transaction cannot be foreseen and aforesaid
details are not available, Audit Committee may grant ommibus approval for such transactions
subject to their valie not exceeding Rs. 1 crore per transaction.
d) The Committee shall review, at least on a quarterly basis, the details of the Related
Party ‘lransactions entered into by the Company pursuant to each of the omnibus
approval given;and
e) Such omnibus approvals shall be valid for a period not exceeding one year and shall

require fresh approvals after the expiry of one year.

Related Party Transactions not approved under the Policy

In the event of entering into a Related Party Transaction with a Related Party that has not been
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Committee. The Committee shall consider all the relevant facts and circumstances regarding the

Related Party Transaction, and shall evaluate all options available to the Company, including
ratification, revision or termination of the Related Party Transaction.

The Committee shall also examine the facts and circumstances pertaining to the failure of
reporting such Related Party Transaction to the Committee under the Policy, and shall take any
such action it may deem fit.

In any case, where the Committee determines not to ratify a Related Party Transaction that has
been commenced without approval, the Committee, as appropriate, may direct additional
actions including, but not limited to, immediate discontinuation or rescission of the transaction
or seeking the approval of the shareholders, payment of compensation for the loss suffered by
the related party etc. In connection with any review of a Related Party Transaction, the
Committee has authority to modify or waive any procedural requirements as specified in the

Policy.
Related Party Transactions not previously approved

Where any contract or arrangement is entered into by a Director or any other employee of the
Company with a Related Party, without obtaining the necessary approvals and if such
transaction is not ratified by the Committee, Board or, as the case may be, by the Shareholders
at a meeting within three months from the date on which such contract or arrangement was
entered into, such contract/arrangement shall be voidable at the option of the Board and if the
contract or arrangement is with a Related Party to any Director, or is authorised by any other
Director, the Directors concerned shall indemnify the Company against any loss incurred by it.

The Company may proceed against a Director or any other employee who had entered into
such contract or arrangement in contravention of the Policy for recovery of any loss sustained
by the Company as a result of such contract or arrangement and shall lake any such actlon, 1t

may deem fit.
Registers and the Disclosures

The Company shall keep and maintain a Register, physically or electronically, as may be
decided by the Board of Directors, giving separately the particulars of all contracts or

arrangements to which the Policy applies.

Every Director and the KMP shall, from time to time make the necessary disclosures to the
Board, a period of 30 days of his appointment, or relinquishment of his office in other
Companies/Firms/bodies corporate, as the case may be, disclose to the Company the
pérticulars relating to his/her concern or interest in the other associations which are required to

be included in the Register maintained in this regard.
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The Register shall be preserved permanently and shall be kept in the custody of the Company
Secretary/Chief Financial Officer of the Company or any other person authorised by the Board
for the purpose.

The Company shall disclose, in the Board’s report, transactions prescribed in Section 188(1) of
the Act with related parties, which are not in ordinary course of business or arm’s length basis.

This Policy will also be uploaded on the website of the Company and shall be disclosed in the
Annual Report.

Review
This Policy shall be reviewed by the Audit Committee as and when any changes are to be made

in the Policy. Any changes or modification in the Policy as recommended by the Committee
shall be presented to the Board for their approval.
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Annexure D

Remuneration Policy

Obijective

The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) requires a Company to frame policy for determining the
remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other employees.
While appointing the Directors, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considers
qualification, positive attributes, areas of expertise and number of Directorships in other
companies and such other factors as it may deem fit. The Board considers the Committee’s

recommendation, and takes appropriate action.

The objective of the Remuneration Policy (the Policy) of the Company is to provide a
framework for the remuneration of the Independent Directors, Non-executive Directors,
Managing Director/Executive Directors, KMPs, and other Senior level employees of the

Company.
The objective of this Policy is to ensure that:

e the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain

talent required to run the company successfully;

* relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance

benchmarks; and

¢ remuneration to the Directors, KMPs and senior management comprises a balance of
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives

appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

Remuneration of the Independent Directors & Non- executive Directors

« The Independent Directors & Non-executive Directors are eligible for sitting fees for
attending the meetings of the Board and the Committees thereof.

« 'The Independent Directors & Non-executive Directors are also eligible for commission,
subject to limits prescribed under the Act and the Rules framed there under.

e The Independent Directors are not eligible for stock options.

o The Non-executive Directors (other than promoter Directors) shall be eligible for stock

options.




Remuneration of the Managing Director & Executive Directors

* The remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive Directors is recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) to the Board. Based on the
recommendations of the NRC, the Board determines and approves the remuneration of
the Managing Director/Executive Directors, subject to necessary approvals, if any.

e The remuneration paid to the Managing Director/Executive Directors is within the
limits prescribed under the Act and approved by the shareholders of the Company. The
remuneration structure includes fixed salary, perquisites, bonus, other benefits and
allowances and contribution to Funds, etc.

* The Executive Directors (other than the promoter Directors) shall be eligible for stock
options.

Remuneration of the KMP (other than Executive Directors) and Senior level employees
e The key components of remuneration package of the KMP (other than Executive
Directors) and Senior level employees shall comprise of fixed salary, perquisites, annual
bonus, other benefits and allowances and contribution to Funds, etc.
* They shall be eligible for stock options.
Policy Review

* The Policy may be amended as may be necessary.

» The NIRC shall implement the Policy, and may issne such guidelines, procedures ete as

it may deem fit.
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Annexure E

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility ( CSR) activities for the financial vear 2017-18

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act,2013 and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to
be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

To leverage the capacity and capital to equip and enable the social sector achieve the greatest impact
on the lives of the poor irn India.

The CSR Policy of the Company is uploaded on the website www .edelweissretailfin.com

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee is as under:-

Mr. Anil Kothuri - Non Executive Director
Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth - Non Executive Director
Mr. Sanjay Nathalal Shah - Indepencdient Director

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: Rs. 359.50 miliion.

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure {two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs. 7.2 million.

5. Details of CSR s} rent during the financial! year: 2.5 million
(a) Total amount to be spent for the finaucial year: Rs. 7.2 million

(b) Amount unspenl, if any; Rs. 4.7 miilion

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1557PLC285450
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Mzaharashira @©+51 22 4009 4400 ® +91 22 4019 4925

www.edelweissretailfin.com
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CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

(CSR POLICY)

Edelweiss Relail Finance Limited
CIN: U67120MH1997PLC285490
Regd. Office: Edelweiss House,

Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina,
Mumbai-400098,
Maharashtra



ii.

ii.

iv.

VL

vii.

Introduction:

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (ERFL) is a non-deposit taking Non-Banking
Financial Company whose ultimate holding company is Edelweiss Financial Services
Limited (EFSL). Edelweiss Group is one of India’s leading diversified financial
services Group. EFSL along with its subsidiaries offers a large range of products and
services spanning across asset classes and consumer segments.

Edelweiss Group’s businesses are broadly divided into Credit including Retail
Finance and Debt Capital Markets, Financial Markets including Asset Management,
Commodities and Life Insurance.

Short title & Applicability:

This policy is titled as the ‘Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” and it shall apply
to all CSR initiatives and activities taken up by the company for the benefit of the
society.

CSR Philosophy and Vision Statement:

To leverage the capacity and capital to equip and enable the social sector achieve the
greatest impact on the lives of the poor in India.

Scope of the activities:

Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting healthcare and sanitation.
Promoting education including special education and employment enhancing
vocational skills especially among children, women, elderly and the differently
abled.

Promoting gender equality empowering women, establishing of old-age homes, day
care centers and such other facilities for senior citizens and majors for reducing
inequalities in socially and economically backward groups.

Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and
fauna, animal welfare, agro-forestry, conservation of natural resources.

Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and
sites of historical importance and works of art, setting up public libraries, promotion
and development of traditional arts and handicrafts.

Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic and
Olympic sports.

Relief to victims of natural calamities like earth-quake, cyclone, drought & flood
situation in any part of the country either directly or through contribution to
recognized relief funds.

The above list is illustrative and not exhaustive. The CSR committee of Board of
Directors is authorized to consider also CSR activities which not included in this list.

It is clarified that, all the aforesaid activities or programs shall be undertaken in India

only and also that such programs and activities shall not be designed to benefit only
the employees of the Company and their families.

Funding & Allocation:



For achieving its CSR objectives, ERFL shall allocate such amount of its average Net
Profits as may be approved by the Board of Directors, as its Annual CSR Budget in
each Financial Year.

Allocation of the Annual Budget for CSR activities in any given year shall be as per
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereof as amended from
time to time. Any unspent/unutilized CSR allocation of a particular year, will be
carried forward to the next year, i.e. the CSR budget will be non-lapsable in nature.

It is clarified that the surplus arising out of CSR projects or activities shall not form
part of the business profit of the Company.

Implementation:

CSR programmes of ERFL may be undertaken by ERFL directly or by the EdelGive
Foundation, a fellow subsidiary, as may be decided by the CSR Committee and the
Board of Directors of the Company.

EdelGive Foundation (EdelGive) is the strategic philanthropic arm of the Edelweiss
Group and was registered as a charitable company under Section 25 of the
Companies Act, 1956. It has been established to drive large-scale sustainable change
in the social sector.

EdelGive seeks to build a strong and high impact social sector for a better India by
leveraging the capacity and capital of the for-profit world to equip and enable the
social sector to achieve the greatest impact on the lives of the poor.

EdelGive makes efficient investments in nonprofits through grant funding. Each
investment involves intensive due diligence along with efficient monitoring and
evaluation processes. EdelGive works closely with select NGOs to effectively tackle
organizational development challenges and as such, utilizes the expertise and skills
of Edelweiss Group employees to provide solutions to investee NGOs in the areas of
strategic planning, financial sustainability, human resources and technology.

EdelGive Engagement:

EdelGive Foundation shall utilize the funds received from ERFL towards projects
undertaken in compliance with this CSR policy. Each project shall be adopted after
clearly defining the objectives, activities, key performance indicators, monitoring and
evaluating tools, and impact measurement techniques to be used.

EdelGive Foundation shall periodically report to the CSR Committee, details of
projects undertaken by it in compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The EdelGive Approach:

o Investing for Impact: Manages philanthropy based on the Venture Philanthropy
model. Accordingly, measures the impact of the support extended to investee
Nonprofits through a tangible framework, which includes emphasis on measurable
outcomes, achievement of objectives, financial accountability and management
competencies. ’



ii.

iii.

v.

Advisory Services, Knowledge Sharing and Capacity Building: Provides tailored
advisory services based on deep sectoral knowledge and information sharing
network as well as capacity-building initiatives to maximize impact.

Effective Platform: Works as a zero cost platform to build networks and facilitate
grant funding between the corporate sector and non-profit sector. All administrative
expenses are borne by Edelweiss.

Professional Management: The Foundation is professionally managed by a
dedicated team that has extensive for-profit, commercial expertise as well as social
and grassroots experience. The team carrying out the CSR initiatives is deeply
committed to their causes and communities.

Current sectors of Focus of EdelGive Foundation:

Education: The Foundation is focused to go beyond literacy and enrolment and work
on projects seeking to improve the public delivery system, particularly with respect
to learning outcomes and competencies and shifts in attitudes and aspirations. The
projects shall have high level of involvement with stakeholders and shall include life
skills education that is crucial for vulnerable groups in deprived communities.
Livelihoods: EdelGive seeks to enhance income levels and employability through
models that aim to reduce the social and economic vulnerability of rural
communities. This involves creating and enhancing sustainable livelihood
opportunities in the area by harnessing the right resources as well as providing
financial inclusion services to rural communities.

Women’s Empowerment: EdelGive supports women-centric programmes that are
designed to empower both adolescent girls and women through education and
livelihood initiatives.

Monitoring:

To ensure effective implementation of the CSR programmes undertaken by
EdelGive, a monitoring mechanism will be put in place.

The progress of CSR programmes undertaken will be reported by EdelGive to CSR
Committee on a quarterly basis and the CSR Committee shall review the progress of
activities.

ERFL shall enter into an agreement with EdelGive for the arrangement of
undertaking CSR activities on its behalf

CSR initiatives of the Company will also be reported in the Annual Report of the
Company.

Miscellaneous:

In case of any doubt with regard to any provision(s) of the policy, a reference can be
made to CSR Committee of Board of Directors. In all such matters, the interpretation
& decision of the CSR committee of the Board of Directors shall be final.

Any or all provisions of the CSR Policy would be subject to revision/amendment in
accordance with the guidelines as may be issued by Government, from time to time.

The Board may review the policy from time to time and make suitable modifications,
as may be necessary.



Arnnexuye-

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 319 MARCH, 2018

o section 20401 of the :azz;pames Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
{Appointment 3%1223 i%: muneration of Managerial Personnely Rules, 2014]

‘%”ffsﬂ%sasz
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
(CiN %é?ilﬁ’\iﬂi@‘ﬁ?&%‘ 285490)
Ffﬁis&:!ﬁasx House, Off. C.8.7 Road,
Kalina, Mumbai City, 400098,

s

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company™) whose debt securities are listed. Secretarial Audit was
conducted 1 a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

We report that-

a) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

by We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
umis We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable

asis for our opinion.

¢} We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of

the Company.

d) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the

compliances of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

e} The compliance of the provisions of the corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

Elufaitons, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was

X«Zhs verification of procedures on test basis.

=



f} The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
ner records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the

gents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
%zgrcby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
he Tinancial year ended on 31 March, 2018 (*Audit Peried”) complied with the
s}%’i‘:?fjnb listed hereunder and also that the Company has pr“pﬁr Board processes
iance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial vear ended on 31% March, 2018
according to the provisions of:

(iy  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder:;

(iv) *Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings:

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

. {a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Renuiatmnu 2008;
(b} *The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(c) 'The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015:

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

>

':»?J

it ‘%srés nf iize Company are not listed on any recognized stock exchanges and only debt securities are
: Wamﬁ& Stock Exchange of India Limited; as per the management, the Securities
47 rohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable per se on
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event took place under this regulation during the audit period.

also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards
tings of the Board @f Directors (§8-1) and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings
i%%% ed D} ihe Ef itute of Company Secretaries of India which the Company has

®

audit pericd, the pany has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

;,md Guidelines to ﬁ e extent applicable, as mentioned above.

(vi} The Company, being a Non-Banking Financing Company registered under Section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, under the category of loan company
{(without acceptance of public deposits). As informed by the management, following are
the laws which are specifically applicable on the Company:-

» The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; and

»  Various circulars, guidelines and regulations made under the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

We have checked the Compliance Management System of the Company to obtain reasonable
assurance about the adequacy of systems in place to ensure compliance of specifically
applicable laws and this verification was done on test basis. We believe that the audit
evidence which we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations
given to us, we believe that the Compliance Management System of the Company seems
adequate to ensure compliance of laws specifically applicable to it.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
‘;:éreper balance of Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the Board of Directors that took place during the audit period were carried out in

- compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Advance notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent in advance of the meetings, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and
for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent and therefore, no dissenting views
were required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.




- We further report that there are systems and processes in the company commensurate with

the size and operations of the wmpanv to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period:

iii.

The shareholders of the Company in their Annual General Meeting held on 29% August,

2017, passed the resolution(s):

pursuant fo section 186(1)a) and section 180{1)(c) of the Act, for borrowing monies

rom time to time and mortgaging or charging the company’s undertaking and
property or any part thereof to secure such borrowing up to a limit for the time being
remaining undischarged of Rs. 3000,00,00,000/- Crore (Rupees Three Thousand
Crores Only) {apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s banker in the
ordinary course of business] even though the moneys to be borrowed together with the
moneys already borrowed by the Company may exceed the aggregate of the paid up
share capital of the Company and its free reserve, that is to say, reserves not set apart
for any specific purpose; and

1

b, pursuant to section 42 of the Act, to issue, offer and allot Non-Convertible Debentures
with or without security, aggregating to Rs. 1000,00,00,000/- Crores (Rupees One
Thousand Crore Only} on private placement basis, in one or more tranches.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 11, 2017, approved the offer
and issue of 50,00,000 (Fiftv Lakh) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten
Only) each for cash, at a premium of Rs. 90 (Rupees Ninety Only) per share aggregating
to an armmount not exceeding Rs. 350.00,00,000 (Fifty Crore Only) to the existing
shareholders of the Company who will accept this offer on a rights basis.

The Board of Dlrect@rs in their meeting held on January22, 2018, approved the offer and

issue of 50,00,000 (Fifty Lakh) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only)

each for cash, at a premium of Rs. 90 (Rupees Ninety Only) per share aggregating to an
amount not-exceeding Rs. 50,00,00,000 (Fifty Crore Only) to the existing shareholders of
the Company who will accept this offer on a rights basis.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on January 22, 2018,approvedthe offer.
issue and allot Secured Non-convertible Redeemable Debentures (the “Debentures™ or
"NCDs”™) for an amount not exceeding Rs. 500,00,00,000 (Rupees Five Hundred Crore
Only) (including Green Shoe Option, in one or more tranches, if necessary) by way of
Public Issue gzlrsuam to the a;;pizcahée laws for cash to the eligible investors/subscribers
and to list the Debentures on one or more stock exchange(s) in India (“Public stue 3, out
of which i bentures for an amount of Rs.491,62,17,000/- (Four Thousand Ninety One
Crore Sixty Two Lakh Sevenieen Thousand) was subsequently allotted by the IPO
Committee on March 22, 2018, Q{zdxnev of Debentures commenced on March26,
2018 at the BSE Limited, S




v. The sharcholders of the Company in their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on
January 22, 2018, passed the resolution, pursuant to section 180(1)(a) and section
180(1)(c) of the Act, for borrowing monies from time to time and mortgaging or
charging the company’s undertaking and property or any part thereof to secure such
§1$r¥'owing up to a limit for the time being remaining undischarged of Rs.

500,00,00,000/- Crore (Rupees Four Thousand Five Hundred Crores Orly) [apart from
ied from the Company’s banker in the ordinary course of business]
even though the moneys (o be borrowed together with the moneys aiready borrowed by
the Company may exceed the a gg&gat@ of the paid up share capital of the Company and
itz free reserve, that is to say, reserves not set apart for any specific purpose.

temporary loans obtain

‘ For Sanjay Grover & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration No. P2001DE052900

Dhyani

New Delhi Partner
02" May, 2018 CP. No.:16185

Lokesh



ANNEXURE G

O

Edelweiss

Ideas create, values protect

Disclosure pursuant to the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnei) Rules, 2014

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and
other details in terms of sub-section 1Z of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5(1) of the Comparnies (Appoiniment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014, is as under:

| N i Disclosure Disclosure Details N
o i Reguirement
1 | Ratio of the | N.A.
i remuneration of each | §
| director to the median f
f remuneration of the
| employees of  the
| | Company  for  the
l financial year
|2 f Percentage increase in !
i ' remuneration of each Directors / Title . % increase
f “director, Cruef Financial KMP’s in I
| Officer, Chief Executive remunerati
| Officer, Company ! | on
f : Secrefary or Manager, if | My, Aruzt Chief Executive 36
5 | m'l'}", in the /inancial year | Kumar Officer
! . Nayyar ,
? 4 Mr. Vireet | hief Financial 10
f | i Mahajan | Officer ,
‘ |
§ M, Sudipta : Ccmpany Secretary 33-
; i | Majumdar
[P l ———
3 | Percentage iwrease in | 24%.{The employees who joined the Company 1n FY !
| the median | 2017-15 are not considered for this purpose.) -
remuneratior. of ;‘ ' '
I wnployees n, the |
I haanciud veot ! E
{ . . e
I 4 ; Number of permanent ' There were 525 permanent employees it the rolls of the
| f cemployees on the roils ‘ Compzny as on Mzrch 31, 208,
| f of Company at the end I '
; of the year . i : . E
L S I -

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited _
Corporate {dentity Number: U67120MH1557PLC285430

Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai:ﬂfUOOQS,Maharashtra

www.edelweissretailfin.com

©+91 22 4009 4400 ® +9122 4019 4925



ldeas create, values protect

@ Edelweiss

5 Average percentile | Average increase for employees other than
increase already made in | managerial personnel who were in employment
the salaries of employees | during FY 16-17 and FY 17-18 the average increase is
other than the managerial | 52.37%.

personnel in the last
financial year and its Average increase for managerial personnel is
comparison  with the | 25359,

percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration
and justification thereof
and point out if there are

i any exceptional
! circumstances for increase
toin the managerial
remuneration
6. Affirmations  that  the | Itisaffirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the

remureration is as per the | Remuneraticn Policy of the Company.
i reinuneration policy of the
Company

ror and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelsweiss Retail Finance Limited

R

Shalinee Mimani Krishnaswamy Siddharth
Director Director
DIN: 07404075 DIN: 02463804

Mumbai,May23,2018

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1557PLC285450
Registered Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.5.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098,Maharashtra @©+91 22 4005 4400 ® +91 22 4018 4925

www.edelweissretailfin.com
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Edelweiss Retail Finance
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements to
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
€erTor.

Auditors’ Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including
the accounting standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Page 2 of 3

Opinion

8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its profit and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

9.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants under the Companies Act, 2013 who, vide their report
dated May 16, 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10. As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central

11.

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred
to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as
we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Page 3 of 3

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure A.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2018
on its financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 3.29;

il. The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2018, as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts—
Refer Note 3.6, 3.10 and 3.32. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at
March 31, 2018.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2018;

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Agarwal

Mumbai Partner
May 02, 2018 Membership Number 118522
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Edelweiss
Retait Finance Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Edelweiss Retail
Finance Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Edelweiss
Retail Finance Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Page 2 of 2

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Inouropinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

R

Sharad Agarwal
Mumbai Partner
May 02, 2018 Membership Number 118522
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Edelweiss Relail
Finance Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018
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i. (a)

(b)

()

ii.

iil.

iv.

vil. (a)

(b)

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of fixed assets.

The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme
designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during
the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3.11 on fixed assets to the financial
statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (ii1)(c) of the said Order are
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loan or provided any guarantee or security in connection with
any loan taken by parties covered under section 185. Therefore, the provisions of section 185 are
not applicable to the Company. The Company is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company
with the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions of Section 186, except sub-section (1)
of Section 186, of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

Further, the Company has not made any investment to the parties covered under Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order in
respect of Section 186 (1) is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,
74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of provident fund, income tax, though there has been a slight delay in
a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including employees’ state
insurance, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs , duty of excise, value added tax, cess goods and
service tax with effect from July 1, 2017 and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax or goods and service tax which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Edelweiss Retail
Finance Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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viii.

xi.

xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
institution or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the moneys raised
by way of term loans and initial public offer (IPO) of debt instruments have been applied for the
purposes for which they were obtained. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial
public offer of equity shares or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The Company has not paid/ provided managerial remuneration and accordingly compliance in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act is not applicable.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non- cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him / her. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is required to, and has been registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 as a Non- Banking Financial Institution.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Agarwal

Mumbai Partner
May 02, 2018 Membership Number 118522



Iidelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Balance Sheet

as on 31 Muarci 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions) As at As al
Nole 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' funds

(a) Shaie capital 31 429.50 329.50
(b) Resetves and surplus 32 2917.24 2,805.43
4,346,74 3,134.93
Non-cusrrent liabilities
(a) Long-tems borro wings 33 26,598,42 6,588.58
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 34 22,96 -
{c) Other long-term Liabilities 35 211,94 2:0.87
(d) Long-term provisions 36 118.70 95.66
* 21,252.02 6935 11
Current liabilities

() Short-term borrowings 3.7 2,867.63 1.751.00

(b) Trade payables 38

(A) total oulstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises -
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises 539.31 396.80
(c) Other current liabilities 3.9 4,879.01 324827
(d) Shorl-lerm provisions 3.10 124.87 56.74
8,410.82 5,446 81
TOTAL - 34,009.58 15,5685
ASSETS
Non-current zassets
(a) Fixed Assets 311
(i) Property, Plant and equipment 50.11 929
(ii) Intangible assets 2.66 3.31
(iir) Intappibles under development 6.06 1.00
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 34 - 21.92
(c) Long-terin loans and advances 312 19,542.79 7,706.41
(d) Other non-cuirent assets 313 3.56 42 00
19,606.58 7.783.93
Current assets
(a) Trade receivables 314 12.14 -
(b) Cash and bank balances 315 233.73 7221
(c) Short-term loans and advances 316 13,769.53 7.296.37
(d) Other currernt assets 317 387.90 364.34
14,493.00 7,732 92
TOTAL 34.209.58 1551685
The accompanying rotes are an integral part of the financial statcnents 2&3

This is the Belance Sheet reterred to in our report of even date

Tor Prive Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLF For and on bel:alf of the Board of Direcinss
Firm's Registration Number 012754N/N500016 Edelweiss Retzil Finance Limited
Chartered Accorntants

\.

u/ §
Sharad Agarwal Anii Kothuri Shalinee Mimani
Purtner Director 2 Direcior
Membership No: 118322 DIN: C0177945 DIN : 07404075

k \
Q\M&b@ wo Raps
Vineet Mahajfin Sudipta Majuimdar
Chief Vinancial Officer Company Secretary
Membership no - A33961

Mumbai - Mumnbai Mumbai

02 May 2018 02 May 2018 02 May 2018



Edelweceiss Retail Finance Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2018

(Cutrency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

Revenue from operations
Fee and commission income
Interest income

Other income

Total Revenue

Expenses

Employee benelits expenses
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax (includes short provision for earlier years Rs. 3.55 miliion

(Previous year Rs. 0.03 million)

(2) Miniraum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit entitlement
(2) Deferred tax (net)

Protit for the year

Earnings per equity sharz (Face value Rs. 10 ¢achj:
Basic and diluted (in Rupees)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Satement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm's Registration Number 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Agarwal
Fartner
Membership No: 118522

Mumbai
(2 May 2018

Note
3.18

3.19
3.20

3.21
322
3.11
3.23

3.26

2&3

¢

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

272.12 187.20
3,380.77 2,338.16
23.33 9.98
3,676.22 2,535.34
339.61 215.71
1,600.79 1,161.19
15.01 332
1,240.91 665.82
3,196.32 2,046.04
479.90 489.30
174.57 181.01
(56.40) -
44.87 (11.17)
316.86 319.46
8.71 10.08

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edclweiss Retail Finance Limited

\

Anil Kothuri
Director
DIN: 00177945

@/w} w

Vincet Mahgjan
Chief Financial Ojficer

Mumbai
02 May 2018
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Shalinee Mimani
Director

DIN : 07404075
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Sudipta Majdmdar
Company Szcretary
Membership no -~ A33961
Mumbai

02 May 2018



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupces in Millions)

A Cash flow from operating activities
Profii before tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation
Provision for standard assets
Provision for Restructured advances
Provision for non performing assets
Provision for credit loss on securitisation
Bar-debis and advance written off
Loss on sale of Fixed assets(net)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Add / (Less): Adjustinents for working capital changes
Increase in receivable from financing business

Increase / (Decrease) in other bank balances

Increase in other loans and advances

Decreas / (Increase) in other current and non current assets
Increase in liabilities and provisions

Cash used in operating activities

Income taxes paid (net of refund)

Net cash used in operating activities -A

B Cash flow {rom investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Net cash used in investing activities - B

C  Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance ot Shaie capital
Expenses on issue of non convertible debentures
Premium payable on redemption of nen convertible debentures
Redemption of privately placed non convertible debantures
Proceeds [rom public issue of non convertible debentures
Pioceeds from issue of subordinate-debt
Proceeds fiom private placement of non convertible debentures
Proceeds from issue of perpetual debt
Repayment of long term bortowings from related parties
Proceeds from term loan fiom banks
Proceeds from term loan from others
Pioceeds from short-term borrowings (net) (Refer note 1)
Repayment of term loan from banks
Repayment of term loan from Others
Net cash generated from financing activities - C

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
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For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the vear ended
31 March 2017

475.90 489.30
15.01 3.32
71.25 9.64
(0.12) 291
29.76 (23.79)

(26.19) 30.14

287.20 225.54

0.32 0.02

863.13 737.08

(17,997.76) (1,002.61)
44.33 (64.33)
(553.40) (21.11)
14.77 (225.71)
1,236.10 358.83
(16,392.83) (217.85)
(116.51) (164.80)
(16.509.34) (382.65)
(60.96) (14.51)
0.36 0.47
(60.60) (14.04)
1,000,00 264.00
(133.44) E
(27.18) (90.47)
{1,000.00) (2,000.00)
4,916.22 -
1,240.00 120 00
1,000.00 -
450.00 s
- (290.00)
7,800.00 1,750.00.
2,550.00 .
1,116.69 1,194.65
(2,053.50) (683 90)
(83.00) -
16,775.79 264.28
205,84 (132.41)




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Cash Flow Statement
Jor the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions) For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 7.88 140.29
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer note 3.15) 213.73 7.88
Notes:

1 Net figures have been rzported on account of volume of transactions
2 The Above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under "Indiizct Method” as set out n Accounting Standard - 3 "Cash Flow Staements” specified under section
133 of companies Act, 2013 read with Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Ruies, 2014,

The acconipanying notes are an integral part of the financial statem:nts 2&3

This is the Cash Flow Satenient referred to in our report of even daie

For Price Waterkouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number 012754N/N500016 Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited-
Chartered Accountants b

- \
,ﬁm &/ %
Sharad Agarwal Anil Kotl ‘Shalinee Mimani
Partner Diregls Director
Membership No: 118522 DIN : 00177945 DIN : 07404075
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X I e blpT Mefencunslen
Vineet Mahajim Sudipta Majumdar

Chief I inuncial Officer  Company Secretary
MMembership no - A33961
Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
02 May 2018 02 May 2018 02 May 2018



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements

2.

1

138

1. Background

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (‘ERFL’ or ‘the company’) is registered with the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a Systemically Important Non Deposit Accepting Non-
Banking Financial company. The company was originally incorporated on February 18,
1997 as “Affluent Dealcom Private Limited” which subsequently got converted to public
limited company on January 1, 2014 and then the company’s name changed to “Edelweiss
Retail Finance Limited” with effect from January 6, 2014, The Company is a subsidiary of
Edelcap Securities Limited.

ERFL is primarily ¢engaged in the business of providing loans against property, business
loans, loan to real estate developers and rural finance loans.

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The accompanying financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with
Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost
convention, on the accrual basis of accounting , unless otherwise stated, and comply with
the accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) rules, 2014, the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (to the extent notified), provisions of the Companies Act, 19536 (to the exient
applicable) (hereinafter together referred to as ‘the Act’) and the Schedule III to the Act
and circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’). The financial
staternents are presented in Indian rupees in millions as applicable unlcss otherwise stated.

The Company being a NBFC registered with RBI follows the guidelines issued by the RBI,
in respect of income recognition, provisioning for nen-performing assets and valuation of
investments.

Use of estimates ‘

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requiras the
Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and
the reported amcunt of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The estimates
and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to
accounting estimates is reccgnised prospectively in current and future periods.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current
Assets

An Asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
Company’s normal operating cycle;

b. Itis held primary for the purpose of being traded;
c. "It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d. It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or usad to
settle a liability for at Jeast twelve months after the reporting date.

Current Assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a. Itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle.
b. Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
¢. Itis due to be settled within tweive months after the reporting date; or

d. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability .for at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms cf the liability
that cculd, at the option of the counierparty, results in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other
liabilities are classified as non-current.

Revenue recognition

a. Fees Income (net of Service Tax / Goods and Service Tax) including processing fees
are accounted on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms and contracts entered
into between the Company and the counterparty.

b.  Processing fee income (net of Service Tax / Goods and Service Tax) on loan against
propeérties is amortised over a period of 7 years or contractual period, whichever is
shorter. In case of small & medium enterprises loans (SME), processing fees (net of
Service ‘Tax / Goods and Service Tax) ccllected are amortised over coniractual
period. The unamortised balance is disciosed under “Other current liabilities” and
“Other long term liabilities” based on amortisable tenor. In the event of a loan being
foreclosed, securitised, assigned or written off, the unamortised portion of such
processing fees is recognised as income at the time of such foreclosure,
securitisation, assignment or write off.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

2.4

2.6

Reverue recognition (continued)

c. Interest income is recognised on accrual basis. Interest income in case of lending
business is recognised on accrual basis except in case of non- performing assets,
wherein it is accounted on realisation, as per RBI guidelines. Loans are repaid by
way of Equated Monthly Instalments (EMIs), which comprise of principal and
interest. interest is calculated on outstanding balance at the beginning of a month.
EMIs generally commence only after the entire loan is disbursed. Pending
commencement of EMIs, pre-EMI interest is charged every month and is accounted
on accrual basis.

d.  Profit/loss earned on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis. Profit/loss
on sale of investments is determined based on the weighted average cost of the
investments sold.

e.  Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Penal interest income on delayed EMI or Pre-EMI is recognized on receipt basis.

g.  Charges levied like cheque bouncing charges, loan conversion charges etc are
recognized on receipt basis.

h.  Interest income on fixed deposits with banks is recognised on time proportion basis.

Provisioning on receivables froni financing business

Provision for non-performing assets is based on the management’s assessment of the
degree of impairment of the loan asset and the level of provisioning required as per the
prudential norms prescribed by RBI.

Provisions against standard assets are made on the basis of prudential norms prescribed by
RBI.

Fixed assets and depreciation
Property, plunt & equipment

Property, plant & equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less
accumulated depreciation and impairment if any. The cost of Property, plant & equipment
comprises of purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset i$ ready for
its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is
provided upto the date of disposal. '

As per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
evaluated the useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of
Part C of the Schedule for calculating the depreciation. The useful lives of the fixed assets
are as follows:
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

2.6

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

“Nature of assets Estimated
useful life
Office Equipment 5 years
Vehicles - 8 years
Computer and data processing units-End user devices, such as Desktops, 3 years"
laptops, etc. - B

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such
assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 years or estimated useful life,

» whichever is shorter life.

Employee benefits

The accounting policy followed by the Company in respect of its employee benefit
schemes in accordance with Accounting Standard 15 (revised 2005), is set out below:

Provident fund

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution
scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. '

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation
in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future
bencfit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its preseni valve, and the fair value of any
plan assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognises each period
of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures
each unit separately to build up the {inal obligation.

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The
discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market yields cn
Government Securitics as at the balance sheet date.

Changes in the present value of definéd obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailiients are recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss as past service cost.

Actuarial gains end losses arising {from experience adjustments and change in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
arise.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Employce benefits (continited)

Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of
their annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company
recognises the charge to the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on
account of such non-vesting accunulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an
independent actuary.

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the
Company cstimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is higher
of the assets net selling price and the value in use which means the present value of future
cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and it’s eventual disposal.
If such recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment
loss and is recognized in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is an
indication that a previously assessed impairment. loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount js reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a
maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Investments

Investments are classified into non-current investments and current investments.
Investments which are intended to be held for one year or rore are classified as long term
investments and investments which are intended to be held for less than one year are
classified as current investments.

Long term investments are carried at cost less diminution in value which is other than
temporary, determined separately for each investment.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost
and fair value is done separately in respect of each category of investment. In case of
investments in mutual funds, the net asset value of units declared by the mutual funds is
considered as the fair value.

Loun origination costs

Loan origination costs comprise of costs paid to third party vendors and intermediaries for
loan acquisition, processing, field verification, legal evaluation, title search, fraud check,
technical valuation, etc. Such origination costs, directly attributable to disbursed loans,
except SME, are amortised over 7 years or original contract period, whichever is shorter.
SME Loans are amortised over original contractual period. The unamoitised balance is
disclosed as part of “Long-term loans and advances” and “Short-term loan and advances”
based on amortisable tenor. Where the loan is foreclosed, securitised or written off, the
unamortised portion of such loan origination costs are recognised as a charge to the
statement of profit and loss at the time of such foreclosure, securitisation or write off,
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Contintied)

2.11

2.12

Securitisation / Assignment

The Company enters into securitization/ assignment transactions and assets are
derecognized upon sale only if the Company surrenders control over the contractual rights
that comprise in the financial assets.

The Company has adopted the accounting policy for securitization / assignment
transactions, as notified by RBI in its circular “Revisions to the Guidelines on
Securitisation Transactions” issued on August 21, 2012.

Unrealised gain on loan transfer transactions comprises of future interest receivable under
par structure of securitisation.

Future interest receivable on loan transler transaction comprises of Company’s share of
future interest strip receivables in case of a par structure securitised deals.

Current and Deferred Tax

Tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount’ of tax for the year determined in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax charge or benefit (reflecting the
tax effect of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the

year).
Current tax

Provision for income tax is recognised based on estimated tax liability computed after
adjusting for allowances, disallowances and exemptions in accordance with the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tux

The deferred tax charge or benefit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities and assets
are recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable
certainty that the asset can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed
depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised
only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of the assets with convincing evicence.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written-
up to reflect the amount that is reasonable/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be
realised.

Minimui Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT credit asset is recognised where there is convincing evidence that the asset can be
realised in future. MAT credit assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and written
down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably certain to be realised.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

2.13  Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting
Standard 20 — “Earnings Per Share” notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. Basic
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or
other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted

earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attibutable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earning per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

2.14  Provisions and contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event

that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

Provisions ate reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the curtent best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that the cutflow of resources weuld be required to
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial siatements. However, contingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will
arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

2.15  Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are 1egarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost. Interest cost in connection with the borrowing of funds to
the extent not directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan.

2.16  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, demand deposits with banks and other
fixed deposits with bank with original inaturities of three months or less.

2.17  Foreign Exchange transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date
of the transaction. Exchange differences, if any arising out of transactions settled during
the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet
date are translated at the closing exchange rates on that date. The resultant cxchange
differences, if any, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss and related assefs and
liabilities are accordingly restated in the balance sheet.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
as on 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)
As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
3.1 Share capital

Authorised:
50,000,000 (Previous year: 50,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 500.00 500.00
500.00 500.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up::
42,950,000 (Previous year: 32,950,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 429.50 329.50
429.50 329.50
As at As at
Movement in share capital 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
h N h: Al
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid Number of shares ~ Amount umber of shares mount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 32,950,000 329.50 29,950,000 299,50
Shares issued during the year 10,000,000 100.00 3,000,000 30,00
Qutstanding at the end of the year 42,950,000 429.50 32,950,000 329.50

During the year the Company issued 50,00,000 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs.10 each at a premium of Rs 90 each for the total consideration of Rs. 500.00
million to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited and 50,00,000 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs.10 cach at a premium of Rs 90 cach for the total consideration of
Rs. 500.00 million to Edelcap Securities Limited.

As at As at
Sharcj,s held by holding / ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
associates
Percentage Percentage
Number of shares shareholding Number of shares SRE ol
Edelcap Securities Limited, the holding company 30,258,333 70.45% 25,258,333 76.66%
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 9,691,667 22.57% 4,691,667 14.24%
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (formerly known as Arum Investments Private
Limited) 3,000,000 6.98% 3.000,000 9.10%
42,950,000 100.00% 32,950,000 100.00%
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company: " Asat As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Iareed 1
Number of shares :::ec::lt:igne Number of shares S:];:(;:::;;;"
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid ) & 6
Edelcap Securities Limited 30,258,333 70.45% 25,258,333 76.66%
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 9,691,667 22.57% 4,691,667 14.24%
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (formerly known as Arum Investments Private
Limited) 3,000,000 6.98% 3,000,000 9. 10%
42,950,000 100.00% 32,950,000 100.00%

Rights, preferences and restriction attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs 10. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to financial statements (Continued)

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

3.2 Reserves and surplus
Capital Reserve

Securities Premium Account
Opening balance
Add : Capital infusion during the year
Less: Ixpenses on issue of privately placed non convertible debentures {net of tax of Rs.15.28 million
(Previous year Rs. Nil)]
Less: Expenses on issue of publicly placed non convertible debentures [net of tax Rs.30.90 million
(Previous year Rs. Nil)]
Less : Provision for premium payable on redemption of non convertible debentures [net of tax of Rs. 9.41 million
(Previous year Rs. 31.31 million)]

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Add : Transfer from Profit and Loss Account
Closing Balance

Special Reserve under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, of India *
Opening balance
Add : Additions during the year

Surplus in statement of profit and loss
Opening Balance
Add: Net profit for the year
Amount available for appropriation
Appropriations:
Less: T'tinsfer to Special Reserve under Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve

* Represents reserve created @ 20% of the profit after tax for the year as per the provisions of section 45-IC of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

iy

N 0197¢

W
b

N
——

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

8.18 8.18
2,152.92 1,978.08
900.00 234.00
28.87 -
58.41
17.77 59.16
2,947.87 2,152.92
8.99 -
8.99
128.96 65.07
63.37 63.89
192.33 128.96
515.37 259.80
316.86 319.46
832.23 579.26
63.37 63.89
8.99 -
759.87 515.37
3,917.24 2,805.43




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
as on 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

33

3.3A

3.3C

Long-term borrowings
Secured
Non-convertible redeemable debentures [Refer note 3 3A]
a Privately Placed Non-convertible debentures
b Public issue of Non-convertible debentures
[Secured by pari pasu charge on immovable property and loans and advance]
Term loans from bank [Refer note 3 55(a)]
Term loans from others [Refer note 3 55(b)]
[Secured by pari pasu charge on receivables of the company]

Unsecured
Non-convertible redeemable subordinated debt (Refer note 3 3B)
Non-convertible non redeemable perpetual debt (Refer note 3 3C)

Repayment terms of Secured Non-convertible Debentures are as follow.

31 March 2018

As at As at
31 March 2017

3,000.00 2,000 00
4,916.22
9,107.20 4,328 58
1,925.00
18,948.42 6,328.58
1,500.00 260 00
450,00
20,898.42 6,588 58

The debentures are secured by way of pari passu charge on an immovable property and standard loan assets to the extent of 100% of the outstanding

amount of the debentures, unless otherwise stated.

Description of Secured Redeemable Non

Convertible Debentures (NCD) Rate Issue Date

ERFL/Public NCD/Series VI * 9.25% 22-Mar-2018
ERFL/Public NCD/Series V * 8 88% 22-Mar-2018
ERFL/Public NCD/Series [V * 9 00% 22-Mar-2018
ERFL/Public NCD/Series III * 865% 22-Mar-2018
ERFL/Public NCD/Series 1I * 875% 22-Mar-2018
ERFL/Public NCD/Series | * 842% 22-Mar-2018
ERFL/NCD/07Nov22 8 50% 07-Nov-2017
ERFL/NCD/19Aug20 9 00% 19-Aue-2015
ERFL/NCD/30Marl8 000% 31-Mar-2015
ERFL/NCD/18Aun]7 9.00% 19-Aug-2015

Total

Redemption
Date

22-Mar-2028
22-Mar-2028
22-Mar-2023
22-Mar-2023
22-Mar-2021
22-Mar-2021
07-Nov-2022
19-Aug-2020
30-Mar-2018
18-Aug-2017

Of which Current maturities have been classified under other Current Liabilities (Refer Note

No. 3.9)
Long Term borrowings (NCDs)

No. of
NCDs

483547
409205
640817
234347
2984334
163967
1000
2000
250
750

As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017

483.55
409.21
640.82
234,35
2,984.33
163.96
1,000.00

2.000.00 2.000 00

250 00

750 00

7.916.22 3.000 00

1.000 00

7.916.22 2.000 00

Note: * During the current year, the Company has raised Rs 4,916 22 million through public issue of 4,916,217 Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures. As at March 31 2018, the Company has utilised the whole of the aforementioned proceeds towards the objects of the issue as stated in the
Prospectus These debentures issued by the Company are listed on the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Repayment terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable subordinate debentures are as follow.

ISIN number Rate Issue Date

INE528508019 1125%  25-Mav-2015
[NE528508027 995% 10-Oct-2016
[NE528808035 925% 31-Jul-2017
INE528508043 925% 06-Oct-2017
Total

Redemption
Date
26-Mav-2025
09-Oct-2026
31-Jul-2027
06-Oct-2027

Of which Current maturities have been classified under other Current Liabilities (Refer Note

[.ong Term horrowines (NCDs)

No. of
NCDs
140
120
240
1000

Repayment terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable perpetual debentures are as follow.

ISIN number Rate Issue Date
INE528S08050 975% 26-Dec-2017
INE528508068 10 00% 07-Feb-2018
Total
o
127

',
“ Mumbay

Redemption
Date
Peretual
Perpetual

No. of
NCDs
200
250

As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017

140.00 140 00
120.00 120.00
240.00

1,000.00

1.500.00 260.00

1.500.00 260 00

As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017

200,00
250.00
450.00
all F
L)
*



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
as on 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions) As at As al
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
34 Deferred tax Assets / Liabllties
Deferred tax labillties
Amortised loan origination costs 204.24 63.22
Difference belween book and tax depreciation 1.07) 0.33
Total (A) 203.17 63.55
Deferred fuy assels
Provision for standard ussets 44.96 17.80
Amortised processing fees 105.94 41.79
Provision for Gratuily 1.94 1.26
Provision for Non performing assets 16.83 15.47
Others 10 54 9.15
Total (B) 180.21 85.47
Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability (A-B) 22.96 (21.92)
33 Other long-term liab.litics
Unarrartised processing fees 120.63 52.84
Interest accrued but nol due on bonowings 87.35 156.04
Unreulised gain oh foan transfer transaclions 3.96 41.99
211.94 250.87
3.6 Long-term pravisicns
Provision for employue benefils
Gratuity (Refer note no. 3.2713) 4.79 3.3
Compensated leave absences 143 0.75
Deferred banus 10.64 9.50
Other Provisions:
Provision for non performing assets 1571 2,82
Provision for standlard asscts 76.03 39.06
Provision (or rastruciured Joan 4.54 4.66
Provision for credit loss on securitisation 9.56 35.74

118.70 95.66




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)

as on 31 March 2018
(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)
As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
3.7 Short-term borrowings
Secured
Bank overdraft 1,592.65 1,018.53
[Secured by pari pasu charge on receivables of the company]
Unsecured
Loans from a related party (repayable on demand) (Refer note no. 3.25(ii)) 1,274.98 732.47
[repayable on demand at rate of 9% p.a.]
2,867.63 1,751.00
3.8  Trade payables
Trade payables
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
i) Acceptances -
ii ) Others - -
a. Related Parties (Refer note no. 3.25(ii)) 121.22 51.81
b. Others (includes sundry creditors and provision for expenses) 418.09 338,99
539.31 390.80
3.9  Other current liabilities
Current maturities of long term secured debt
Term loan from bank [Refer note 3.55(a)] 2,488.72 1,520.83
Term loan from others [Refer note 3.55(b)] 542.00 -
Non-convertible debentures - (Refer note 3.3A, 3.3B and 3.3C) - 1,000.00
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 279.52 148.47
Income received in advance 1.84 0.46
Unamortised processing fees 182.54 67.91
Other Payables
Accrued salaries and benefits 33.70 4275
Withholding taxes, service tax, GST and other taxes payable 96.04 25.47
Book overdraft 1,212,11 280.11
Provision for capital expenditure 3.59 0.50
Others 8.48 2.94
Unrealised gain on loan transfer transactions 30.47 158.83
4,879.01 3,248.27
3.10 Short-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 3.27B) 0.77 0.50
Compensated absences 0.24 0.24
Deferred bonus 17.85 15.95
Other Provisions :
Provision for non performing assets 2234 1.48
Provision for standard assets 52.65 12.36
Provision for taxation (Net of advance tax Rs.392.71 million; Previous
year:Rs.311.93 million ) 31.02 26.21
124.87 56.74
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
as on 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

3.12

Long-term loans and advances
(considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Secured

Receivable from financing business

- Standard Assets
- Sub-standard Assets
- Doubtful Assets

Unsecured

Receivables from financing business
- Standard Assets
- Sub-standard Assets

Other loans and advances
(Unsecured considered good)
Rental deposits
Unamortised loan origination cosls

Advance income taxes (net of provision for Tax Rs 0.39 million;

Previous year Rs. 0.58 million)
MAT credit entitlement

3.13 Other non-current assets

(Unsecured considered good)

Deferred Consideration on loan transfer transactions

Ry, WG s
“ Y g . L
~ IV D1 2rean st 1"-8;'_",.- "”

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

13,043.06 5,137.10
217.81 28.23
18.53 -
13,279.40 5,165.33
5,891.23 2,434.03
31.38 24.74
5,922.61 2,458.77
57.10 3.67
225.88 78.59
2.40 0.05
56.40 -
6,264.39 2,541.08
19,543.79 7.706.41
3.96 42.00
3.96 42.00




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
as on 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions) As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
3.14  Trade receivables
Debtors outstanding for a period exceeding six months -

Other debts
Unsecured, considered good 12.14 -
12.14
3.15 Cash and bank balances
Cash and Cash equivalents
Balances with Banks
- in Current accounts 213.73 7.88
Other Banks Balances
- Short term deposits with banks (Refer note 3.28) 20.00 64.33
(Other bank deposits with maturity more than 3 months and less than 12 months)
233.73 72.21
3.16  Short-term loans and advances
(considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Secured
Receivable from financing business
- Standard Assets 3,958.24 4,005.08
- Sub-standard Assets 25.44 1.32
- Doubtful Assets 6.27 -
3,989.95 4,006.40
Unsecured
Receivables from financing business
- Standard Assets 9,208.56 3,098.38
- Sub-standard Assets 46,59 7.68
9,255.15 3,106.06
Other loans and advances
(Unsecured considered good)
Deposits- others 0.13 0.13
Prepaid expenses 0.90 0.74
Unamortised loan origination costs 358.59 104.09
Loans and advances to employees 0.63 0.42
Input tax credit 135.94 29.01
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for valug to be received 28.24 49,52
9,779.58 3,289.97
13,769.53 7,296.37
3.17  Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Accrued interest on Inter-corporate deposits 0.03 0.02
Accrued interest on loans 19.89 17.18
Accrued interest on loans not due 337.21 188.31
Deferred Consideration on loan transfer transactions 30.47 158.83
387.60 364.34
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

3.18 Fee and commission income

Loan processing fees and other fees

3.19 Interest Income

On loans
On fixed deposits
On others

3.20 Other income

Miscellaneous income

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

272.12 187.20
272.12 187.20
3,378.95 2,338.10
1.78 0.02
0.04 0.04
3,380.77 2,338.16
23.33 9.98
23.33 9.98




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

3.21

3.23

3.23A

Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus (Refer note 3.30)

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 3.27A)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs ’

Interest on debentures [Refer note 3.25(ii)]

Interest on Subordinated Debt

Interest on term loan

Interest on bank overdraft

Interest on loan from related party [Refer note 3.25(ii)]
Discount on Non Convertible Debentures

Discount on commercial paper

Interest on shortfall in payment of Advance Income Tax
Bank charges

Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion
Auditors' remuneration (Refer Note 3.23A)
Bad- debts and advances written off
Commission and brokerage
Communication

Computer software

Corporate Social Responsibility Expense
Directors' sitting fees

Electricity charges (Refer note 3.30)
Legal and professional fees

Loan origination costs amortised

Office expenses

Printing and stationery

Provision for standard assets

Provision for restructured advances
Provision for non performing assets
Provision for credit loss on securitisation
Rates and taxes

Rating Support Fees

Rent (Refer note 3.30)

Repairs and maintenance - others

ROC expenses

Service tax expenses

Stamp duty

Travelling and conveyance
Miscellaneous expenses

Auditors' remuneration:
As Statutory Auditors
Towards reimbursement of expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

315.64 19829
15.90 7.68
8.07 9.74
339.61 215.71
304.47 434.60
87.83 23.18
819.70 557.09
49.36 19.67
301,98 112.07
3.84 972
7.49 .
0.28 1.19
25.84 3.67
1,600.79 1,161.19
7.70 3.07
1.72 1.62
287.20 225,54
2.59 0.94
8.35 1.35
1.03 0.05
2.50 0.50
0.44 0.40
4.45 1.41
251.35 114.20
422.78 231.10
6.58 160
4.87 163
71.25 9.65
(0.12) 2.91
29.76 (23.79)
(26.19) 30.14
0.85 0,27
0.22 12.50
40.05 10,25
2.11 0.61
0.00 (0.07)
69.10 21,31
14.79 773
20.85 9,39
10.68 1.51
1,240.91 665.82
1.66 151
0.06 0.11
1.72 1.62




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the fi ial stat ts (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Miilion)

324 Segment reporting

The Company is regislered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non Banking Financial Company engaged in the business of lending and financing. All other
activities of the Company revolve around the main business. Since the business operations of the Cuinpany are primarily concentratéd in India, the Company is
considered to operate only in the domestic segment. As the Compuny's business activity falls within a primary busi 2] the fi ial are
reflective of the information required under Accounting Standard 17 on Segment Reporting notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014

3.25  Disclosure as required by Accounting Stundard (AS) — 18 on “Related Partly Disclosures” notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

(i) List of related partics and relationship:

Edelcap Securities Limited - Holding Company
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited — Ultimate nolding Company

Name of related parties by whom control is exercised

Auris Corporate Centre Limited (merged with Ecap Equities Limited w.e f 1™ April 2017)
ECL Finance Limiled

EdelGive Foundatior:

Edelweiss Comimodities Services Limited

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries
(with whom transactions liave taken place)

FEdelweiss Business Services Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Web Services Limited)
EFSL Trading Limited (Formerly known as EFSL Commodities Limited )

Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (Formerly known as Arum Investments Private Limited)
Eternity Business Centre Limited (merged with Ecap Equities Limited we.f 1™ April 2017)

Key Managemend Personnel

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Edelweiss Securities Limited
Edeiweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited

Olive Business Centre Limited (merged with Ecap Equities Limited w.e.f 1 April 2017)

Ecap Equities Limited

Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited

Mr. Arun Kumnar Nayyar

|'@ 'ransactions with relnted parties @

As at

As at

Nal T i o
alure of Transaction Reluted Party Name 31 March 2018 1 March 2017

Capital Account Transaction during the year:

Eauity shares issued to Edelweiss Financial Setvices Limited 50,00 -
Ldelcap Securities Limited 50.00
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (Fornerly
known as Arum Investments Private Limited) 3000

Securilies premium received from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 450.00
Edelcap Securities Limited 450.00 -
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limiled (Formerly !
known as Arum Investments Private Limited) 234.00

Non convertible debentures issued to Ecap Equities Limited 440.00

Assigniment of loan portfolio from Edelweiss Housing Finance Linuted - 1,005 51

Current account transactions:

Lvans teken from (refer note 3.25A(2)) Edelweiss Financial Satvices Limited - 33302
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 5,171.46 3,472.40

Loans repaid Lo (refer note 3 25A(2)) Edelweiss Financial Services Limmted - 429,13
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 4,628.94 2,739.93
EFSL Trading Limited (Formerly known as 290.00
EFSL Commodilies Limited }

) ~ EFSL Trading Limited (Foimeriy kiown as
Inierest E L e - 7.03
nierest Expenses on loan fiom EFSL Commodities Limited )

Edelweiss Financial Services Limiled - 193
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 301,98 103.11

interest Expenses on Non convertible debentures Edelweiss Coramodities Services Limited 3123
LCL Fnance Lirited 1.74

Legal & Professional Fees Fdelweiss Housing Finance Limited 135.46 4867
Edelweiss Business Services Limited
(Formerly knowr as Edelweiss Web Services 42.43 024
Limited)

Service Fee Expenses Edelweiss Honsing Finance Limited 0.03
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Conlinued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

(i) Transactions with related parties (Continued)
" As at As at
Nature of T t Related P N
LD Ry b clated Party Name 31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Reimbursement paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 65.76
Edelweiss Business Services Limited
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Web Services 6.11 7184
Limited)
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 3.88 902
Reimbursement received from ECL Finance Limited 0.89
Cost reimbursement paid tv Ldelweiss Financial Szrvices Limited 1.11 1.92
Ede!weiss Business Services Limited
(Formerly known as Edeiweiss Web Services - 006
Limited)
Fdelweiss Commoditics Services Limited 3.69 2.16
Etemity Business Centre Lirmited - 624
Ecap Equities Limited 10.85 -
ECL Finance Limited 0.16 -
Edelweiss Broking Limited 1.69 -
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management 0.68 )
Limited '
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.67
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 4.69
Sale of Fixed Aszels ECL Finance Limited 0.02
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.06 -
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management 0.03
Limited i
Cosl reimbursement Receivad fiom ECL Finance Limited 3.42
Edelweiss Broking Limiled 001 -
Edelweiss Firancial Services Lithited 0.04
Edeiweiss Business Services Limited
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Web Services 0.17
Limited)
Edeiweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.43 -
EFSL Trading Limited (Formerly known as 0.61 B
EFSL Commodities Limited !
Edelweiss General Lisurance Company 1.84
Premium Expenses Limited ’
Commission & Brokerage Expenses Edelweiss [nvestment Adviser Limited - 095
Edelweiss Broking Limited 37.68
Donation : EdclGive Foundation 2.50 .50
Rating fee paid Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.22 12.50
Mr. Arun Kumar Nayyar
Remuneration paid 1o (refer note 3.25A(3)) 19.50 1432
Director nomination deposit recerved from Edelcap Sceurities Limited - 030
Prepaid Expense Edelwess Financial Services Limited 071
Balances with related parties:
Non convertible debentures (at face value) held by Edelweist Commodtizs Sefvices Limited 479.00 -
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 3.00 -
ECL Finance Limited 1,250.00 -
Short term berrowings from Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 1,274.98 73247
(refer note 3.254(2))
Tnterest accrued and due on EFSL Tiading Limited (Formerly known as 049
bosrowings from EFS1. Commodities | imited )
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Noles to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

(ii) Transactions with related parties (Continued)

0 A As nt As at
Nature of T'ransaction Related Party Name 31 March 2018 11 March 2017

Interest Payable on debentures to Edelweiss Commodities Sarvices Limited 24.07 -
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 0.03

Trade Payables Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.24 -
Edclweiss Housing Finance Limited 91.93 51 46
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.06 .
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 0.09 -
Edelweiss Business Szrvices Limited
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Web Services 24.66 03s
Limited)
Ecap Equities Limited 1.92 -
ECL Finance Limited 1.47 .
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.83 -
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management 0.02 .

Trads Receivables ECL Finance Limited 5.42 .
Edclweiss Broking Limited 0.08 -
Edelweiss Buriness Services Limited
(Formerly known as Edelveiss v/eb Services 0.18 -
Limited)
Edelweiss Securities Limitec 0,02 -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 6.38 -
EFSL Trading Limited (Formerly known 2s 0.01
EFSL Commodities Limited ) '

Nomination deposits - Payables Edelcap Securities Limited 0.60 0.60

Advances to others Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited - 0.03

Nomiration deposits - Receivables Edelcap Securities Limited 0.10 010

Note : 3.25A

1 Previous year figures have been recasted / restated wherever necessary

2 The Intra group Company loans are generally in the nalure of revolving demand loans. Loan taken/repaid from/to related parties are disclosed based on the
maximum incremental amount taken and repaid during the reporting period

3 Information relaling 1o remuneration paid to key managerial person mentioned abuve excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashment, bonus ard
deferred bonus which are provided for group of employees on an overall basis Thcsx‘ are included on cash basis The variable compensation included
herein is on cash basis

4 The above list contain name of only those related parties with whom the Company lias andertaken transactions for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31
March 2017
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

3.26 Earnings per share

In accordance with Accounting Standatd 20 on earnings per shares as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companias Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 , the computation of earnings per share is set out below:

T'articulars

a) Shareholders earnings (as per statement of profit and loss)

b) Caleulation of weighved average number of Equity Shares of Re 10 each:

- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

- Number of equity shares issued during the year

Total number of equity shares cutstanding ai the end of the year

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (based on the date
of issue of shares)

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rupees) (a/b)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

316.86 31945
3,29,50,000 2,99,50,000
1,00,00,000/ 30,00,000
4,29,50,000 3,29,50,000
3,63,88,356 3,17,60,685

8.71 10.08

The basiz and diluted earnings per share arc the same as there are no dilutive potenti] equity shares issued or oulstanding as at 31 March 2018 and as al 31 March 2017

3.27  Disclosure pur fo A ing Stundard 15 (Revised)-Employee bevefits

A)  Defined contribution plan (Provident fund):

lod in “E
I3

_henefit

Amount of Rs 13 05 million (prexious yea: Ps.5 73 million) ic recognised &s expenses and i

B)  Defined benefit plan (Grotuity):

n

d in the

I
ploy

The following tables susimarize the compunents of the net employce bencfit exp T
recognized in the balance sheet for the Gratuity benefit plan

Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit expenses recognized in the statesment of profit & loss

of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts

Current service cost

Initerest on defined beneiit obligation
Past service cost

Actuarial losses

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

1.30 086
0.24 i 016
0.22 -

0.24 0.72
106 1.74

Total included in 'Emplayee Benefit Expenses’

Balance Sheet )

Reconcilation of 1) vhwvedd Benefit Obligation (DBO) are o3 follows:

Present value of DBO at siart of year
Interest cost ’
Current service cost
Employ '['rausfelr n
Past service cost
Benefit paid
Actuarial Loss:

For the yesr ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 Marzh 2017

3.63 211
0.24 016

1.36 0386

0.02 003

0.22 .
(0.15) (0.25)
0.24 072

5.56 363

Present value of DO at end of year

067 =%
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes (o the financial statements (Continued)
TFor the year ended 31 March 2018

(Cunency: Indian rapaes in Million)

3.27 Disclosure p tiw A Standard 15 (Revised)-Employee bencfits (Continued)
Changes in the fair value of plan assals are a3 follows:
For (he year ended For the year erded
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year NA NA
Acquisition adjusiment NA NA
Expected retum on plan asset NA NA
Centributions NA NA
Beneits paid NA NA
Actuarial gain/(loss): NA NA I
 Faiv aabue of plan assets at the end of the year NA L NA ]
Net liability / (nsset) recognised in the Balance Sheet
For the year ended Fur the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Present vaiue of DBO 5.56 3.63
Fair value of plan assets = .
Amount recognized in balance shect - (assets)/liability 5.56 363
I OF which, skiart terni provision 0.77 0.50
Experience adjnstment :
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2018 3! Mach 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Defined Benefit Obligation 5.56 363 241 0,03
Fair value of plan sssets - - - -
Surplus / (Deficit) (5.56) (3.63) 211) (063
O plan liabilities: {ain)/ loss 0.36 0.57 017 NA®
* Being Lhe first actuarial valuation
Principle hetuarial assumpiians at the balance sheot dnte:
As al As at
, 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Discount rate current 7.00% 6,607
Salary escalation current 7.00% 700%
Employees atirivion rate (bascd on categories) 13-60% 11-60%
Mortality Rate 1ALM 2006-08 (Ul1.) TALM 2006-UB (LiiL)
Expected avernge remaining working life of enaployees 3 years 4 yeas

328 Encumbrances’ on fixed deposiis held by the Company

Fixed deposit of Rs. 20 ndllion have been given as margin against bank guarantee issued by State Bank of India i favour of BSE Linuted for public issuance of Non

wonvertible debenture by the commpany.

{Previous Year : Fixed deposit of Rs. 64.33 rullion have been given as crzdit enhancement lowards Securitization )

Lund

a) Corporale gaurantee given by the Company in relation to securitisation \ransaction is Rs. 728.98 million {Previous year : Rs. 322.58 mil'ion )

The Company has received deimand notices from tax autharities on aceount of disallowance of expendiiure for earming exempt income under Section 14A of Income Tax
Act 1961 read with Kule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962, The company has filed uppealss and s defending its position. Based on the faverable autcome n Appellate
prozecdings in the past and as advised by the tw advisors, company is rexsonably cottain ahuut ststaining its position in the pending; cases, hence the possihility of

outflow of fesources emoodying economic vencfits on this ground is remole

b) Esrimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capilal account nat of advances and not provided fo. is Rs. 22.84 million
(Previous Year Rs.1 02 million).

¢)  Undrawn committed credit lines Rs. 863.13 million as at March 31, 2018 {Previous year: Rs. 59,73 mitlion)

330 Cost sharing

-

Edelweiss Financial Services Lintited, being the ultimate holding Company along with fellow neurs expands

like common semer management

compensution cost (FY 2017-18), Group miedichim, maurancs, reat, ¢lectricity charges ete. which s Far the comman benefit of itself and its certain subsidiaties, fellow

pended is b

subsidiaries mcluding the Company Tius cost-so d by the C

y on the bisis of number of employees, time spent by employees of other

Companies, actual identifications eic. On the same lines, employees’ costs expendad (if any) by the Conpany for the benufit of Fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the

Company. Accordingly, and as identified by the
received based on Lie management's best estimate

the exp
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

3.31 Details of dues to micro enterprise and small enterprise

Trade payables includes Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. Nil) payable to “supplicrs” registered under the micro, small and medium
enterprises Development Act, 2006. No interest has been paid / is payable by the Company during the year to “suppliers” registered
under this Act. The aforementioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard
to applicability under the said Act.

3.32  Derivatives and Long Term Contracts
The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year
end, the Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law / accounting standards for material
foresecable losses on such long term contracts has been made in the books of account. The Company has not entered into any
derivative contracts during the year. (Previous year Rs. Nil) and hence detailed disclosure is not required.

3.33 Foreign currency
The Company has not undertaken any foreign currency transaction during the year ended 51 March 2018 (Previous year: Rs Nil).

3.34 [Investments

Particulars As at As af
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
1) . Value of Investments
1} Gross Value of Investments
a) In India 3 :
b} Outside India = -
ii) Provisions for Depreciation
a) In India - -
b) Outside India - -
iii) Net Value of Investments
a) In India . s i ” ;
b) Outside India - 8
2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments.
i) Opening balance - -
ii) Add : Provisions made during the year -
iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year - -
iv) Closing balance - -
3.35 Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)
Particulars As at aisl
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
D CRAR (%) 16.36% 18.67%
i) CRAR - Tier [ capital (%) 11.89% 17.90%
iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 4.47% 0.77%
iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-1I capital 1,500.00 250.00
V) Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments 450.00 -
e Chartered Ao oS
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

3.36 Direct assignment & Securitisation

The Company sells loans through securitisation and direct assignment.
The information on direct assignment of the Company as an originator in respect of par transaction done during the year is given

Particulars asiat e

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Total number of loan assets under par structure 72 195
Total book value of loan assets 479.42 761.02
Sales consideration received 479.42 761.02

The information on direct assignment of the Company as an originator in respect of transaction done on premium during the year is

Particulars asgt As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Total number of loan assets under par structure 1712 1752
Total book value of loan assets 29.93 : 52.16
Sales consideration received 30.66 52.7

Disclosures in the notes to the accounts in respect of securitisation transactions as required under revised guidelines on
securitization transactions issued by RBI vide circular no.DNBS. PD.No.301/3.10. 01/2012-13 dated August 21, 2012

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
1 No. of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions 3 4
2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the 592.29 2372.15
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the
date of balance sheet 59.23 237.22
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
- First loss 39.23 163.35
- Others - -
b) On-balance shect exposures ' '
- First loss - ' 73.87
- Others - -
4 Amount of exposures to assignment transactions other than MRR 260.56 ' 194.16
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss ' 260.56 159.23
- Others - -
ii) Exposure 1o third party securitisations
_ - First loss = -
- Others oo
b) Oun-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own se ecuritisations
- First loss - 34.93
- Others - #
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss * -
- Others . -
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statemeats (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
i) No. of accounts Nil Nil
ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC Nil Nil
iii) Aggregate consideration Nil Nil
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlicr Nil Nil
years

Particulars

v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value . Nil Nil

Disclosures in the notes to the accounts in respect of assignmennt transactions

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

1 No. of transactions assigned by the NBFC 5 3

2 Total amount outstanding 920.60 - 680.87

3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the
date of balance sheet 102.14 75.20
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
- First loss o - -
- Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures ) _
- First loss - -
- Others 102.14 75.20

4 Amount of ¢xposures to assignment transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own assigninents
- First loss - -
- Others - -
ii) Exposure to third party assignments -
- First loss = .
- Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own assignments
- First loss - -
- Others - .
i) Exposure to third party assignments
-Firstloss ' -
- Others - -

Details of Assignment transactions undertaken

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
i) No. of accounts 1,784 1,947
ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 509.35 813.17
iii) Aggregate consideration 510.08 813.72
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in carlier Nil Mil
years

Particulars

v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value 0.73 0.55

.,

2.
-2
) {

\

/“\‘a‘l FJ"—J?

p N — L s

S ~
r \\'r';




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Tor the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupces in Million)

3.37 Details of non-performing Sfinancials assets purchased / sold
Duting the year the Compeny has ncither purchased nor sold any non-performing financials assets (Pravious year : Nil)

. Details of non-performing finuncial assets purchased @

As at Lo
Particulars 31 March
2
31 March 2018 2017
1{(a) No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
(b) Aggregale outstanding Nil Nil
2|(a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year Nil Nil
(b} Apgregate cutstanding Nil Nil
B. Details of Non-performing Financial Assels sold:
|
As at Gy
Particulars 31 March
_ 31 March 2018 2017
1(a) No. of accounts sold Nil Nil
2|(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
3|(c) Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil

338  Un-hedged foreign carrency risk
There are no un-hedged foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2018 (Previous year Rs. Nil)

339 Operating leases
‘The Company has taken premises on operating lease. Terms of lhie lease include terms for renewal, increase in rents 1n future periods
and term of cancellation, Gross rental expenses for the year ended 31 March 2018 aggregated fo Rs.40.05 million (Previous year Rs.
10.25 million) which has been included under {lie hiead Other expenses — Rent in the statement of profit and loss.

Details of future minimuin lease payments for the non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

For the year
ended
31 March 2017

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

Minimum lease payments {or non cancellable lease

- not later than one year 22.24 1.18

~ later than one year and not later than five years 19.69 .

- later than five year - J
Fulure minimum lease payments for the non-cancellable operating lease are before sharing of expenses with group companies.

3.40 Fraud Reporting .
‘[here were no instances of fraud identified and reported during the year (Previous Year Nil) as required in terms of Chapter 11 paragraph 5 of
Maonitoring of frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

3.41 Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect & exposurc to capital market
a) Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect

retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space,
botels, land acquisition, developnient and construction, etc).
(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised
a) Residential
b) Commercial real cstate

B. Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB)
and Housing Finance Companics (HFCs)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
A. Direct exposure

(i) Residentinl mortgages -

Lending fully sceured by morigages on residential proparty that is or will Le 6,283.25 4,336.32

occupicd by the barrower vy that is rented
(i) Commercial real estate -

Lending secured by mmortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, 9,835.53 4,839.75
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian 1upees in Millicn)

3.41 Exposure to real estate sector, botls direct and ind

b) Exnosure to capital market

Particulars

irect & exposure to capital market (continued)

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

1) ditect investment 1n equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which 1s not exclusively

invested in corporate debt

i) / h lean
u d
¢ it mutual
funds
iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or uriis of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as
primary security
iv) rity
funds 'does not fully cover the advances
v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on
behalf of stockbrokets and market makers
vi) securily of shar
basis for meetin 5
es in anticipatio resources
vif) bridge loans to companics agains: expected equity flows / issues
all to Ventuie Funds
3.42  Asset liability management
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
Yor the finencial year 2017-18
Over1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 6
. Upto 30/31 r Over 1 year
Particulars month upto 2 months upto 3 months upto  months
days upto 3 years
months months 6 months  upto 1year
1 1,127.19 3,429.43
15 176.82
Foreign
Currency
Assets
For the fingncial year 2016-17
6
. Upto 30/31 Over 1 month Over 2 months Over3 Over Over 1 year upto
Particulars upto 2 months upto months upto
days upto 3 months 3 years
months 6 months 1vyear
696 85 940.71 1.689.55 1.281.17 990
13 569 94 135.1 1 167
Foreign
Currency
Assets
Foreign
Currency
Assets
Chartered 4
Charte
0
*

*

For the year
ended
31 March 2017

Over 3 years
upto 5 years

Over 3 years
upto 5 years

53

Over 5 years

284075

Over 5 years

Total

Total

41



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Noles to the financial statements (Continued)
For ihe year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency Indian rupees in Million)

3.43  Movements in non performning advances:

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of movement of gross Non-performi

NPAs and provision

ng assets (NPAs), aet

For the year For the yecar
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
i) Net NPAs to net advances (%) 0.95% 0.36%
if) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance 61.97 39.76
b) Additions during the year 632.45 191.37
¢) Reductions during the year (348.40) (169.16)
d) Closing balance 346.02 61.97
i) Movement of net NPA
a) Opening balance 53.01 9.91
b) Additions during the year §57.20 4511
¢) Reductions during the year (302.78) (2.01)
d) Closing balance 307.43 53.01
Movement of provisions for NPAs (including provisions on restructured
iv) assets)
a) Opening balance 8.96 29.85
b) Additions during the year 75.25 146.26
¢) Reductions during the year (45.62) (167.15)
d) Closing balance 38.59 8.96

3.44  Details of single borrower limit ar.d group borrower limit exceeded by the Company:
During the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, (he Conipany’s credit exposure to singie borrowers and group
borrowers were within the limits prescribed by the RBI.

3.45 Unsecured Advances
The company has not taken any charge over the rights, licenses, authorisation, etc.. against ansecured loans given to borrowers

3.46 Remuneration of Directors
The company has not entered into any {ransaction with non-execurive directors during the year (Previous year Rs. Nil) except

disclosure made in note 3.63

3.47 Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in uccounting policies
There are no prior period items (Previous year Rs. Nil) snd there are no changes in accounting policies during the year.

348 Accounting Standard 21 -C lidated Financial Statements (CFS)
The company docs not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture and hence consolidation is not required

3.49 Details of 'provisions and contingencies'

Break up of 'provisions and contingencies' shown under the head vkpenditure
in statement of profit and loss.

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

For the year
ended
31 March 2017

1) Provisions for depreciation on investiment - -
i) Provision towards NPA (include Restructured assets) 29.64 (20.88)
1ii) Provision made towards income tax * 163.04 169.84
iv) Provision for standard assets 77.25 9.6>
v) " Other provision and contingencies

n) Provision for credit loss on securitisation (26.19) 30.14

Note: * Includes current tax, MAT credit entitlement and deferred tax
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

3.50 Draw Down from Rescrves
No Draw Down from the Statutory Reserves during FY 2017-18 (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

3.51 Concentraticn of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

A) Concentration of advances

Total advances to (wenty largest borrowers 2,706.67 1,307.27
94 of advances to twenty largest borroweis to total advances 8.34% 8.87%
B) Concentration of exposures (includes Off balance sheet exposure)
Tatul exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers 2,774.67 1.307.27
% of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / custoners to total advances 8.25% £.65%
C) Concentration of NPAs

83.33 36.59

Toal exposurcs to top four NPAs
D) Sector-wise NPAs

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

For the yeuv

% of NPAs to total advunces in
that sector

For the year
ended
31 March 2017

For the year

ended ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
1 Agriculture & allied activities 0.00% 0.00%
2 MSME 0.00% 0.00%
3 Corporate bortowers 0.40% 0.43%
4 Serviges 0.66% 0.41%
5 Unsecured personal loans 0.00% 0.00%
6 Auto loans 0.00% 0.00%
7 Other personal loans 0.00% 0.00%
| 3.52  Customer complaints
For the year For the year
4 ended ended
Fardculuss 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year H - -
(t) No. of complaints received during the year 70 52
{c) No. of complaints rediessed during the year 57 32
(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 13
3.53 Details of ratings assigned by credit rating agencies
As at 31 March 2018
Instrument category CRISIL SMERA CARE Brickworks Brichworks
i) Long termt instruments
CRISIL SMERA CARE AA BWR AA BWR AA+
- Rating AA/Stable AA/Stable
Amouat 18,000.00 1,000.00 12,500.00 1,000.00 4,500,00
i) Short term: instruments
' Rating CRISIL A+ NA CARE Al+ NA NA
Amount 5,000,00 NA 5,000.00 NA NA
As at 31 March 2017
Instrument category CRISIL CRA Brickworks
1) Long term instrumeuts
CRISIL [ICRA] AA BWR AA+
Rating AA/Stable
Amount . 10,000.00 31,500.00 4,500,00
i) Short term instruments
Rating NA [ICRA] A+ NA
| Amount NA 6.000.00 NA

Note: 1. Only utilized credit rating details are provided

2. There were no changes in any of the ratings or outlook during the year
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency:

3.55 a)

Indian rupees in Million)

Details of term lcan taken from Banks

As at March 31 2018

Rate of [nterest
Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9.00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99% Total
Repayment
December-2022 257.33 B - 257.33
September-2022 350.08 - - 350.08
July-2022 31.25 B 31.25
June-2022 350.08 B 350.08
May-2022 18.75 - - 18.75
April-2022 31.25 - - 31.25
March-2022 381.33 - - 381.33
February-2022 18.75 18.75
January-2022 31.25 - 31.25
December-2021 381.33 - - 381.33
November-2021 18.75 - - 18.75
October-2021 31.25 B - 31.25
September-2021 381.33 B - 381.33
August-2021 18.75 - 18.75
July-2021 31.25 - 31.25
June-2021 381.33 B - 381.33
May-2021 18.75 - - 18.75
April-2021 31.25 - 31.25
March-2021 427.00 105.50 - 532.50
February-2021 18.75 - - 18.75
January-2021 31.25 B B 31.25
December-2020 515.25 109.40 - 624.65
Nevember-2020 18.75 - 18.75
October-2020 31.25 - - 31.25
September-2020 660.49 109.40 - 769.89
August-2020 18.75 - - 18.75
July-2020 31.25 - - 31.25
June-2020 669.49 109.40 769.89
May-2020 18.75 B - 1875 |
April-2020 64.58 - - 64.58
March-2020 660.49 109.40 - 769.89
February-2020 18.75 - 18.75
January-2020 64.58 - B 64.58
December-2019 660.49 109.40 - 769.89
November-2019 18.75 - - 18.75
October-2019 64.58 - E 64.58
September-2019 660.49 109.40 - 769.89
Augusi-2019 18.75 - 18.75
July-2019 64.58 - 64.58
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

3.565 a)
As at March 31 2018

Details of term loan taken from Banks (continued)

Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings (other than debentures):
All secured long term borrowings are secured by way of hyp
and corporate guarantee from the ultimate holding company an

As at March 31 2017

Rate of Interest
Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9.00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99% Total
Repayment
June-2019 660.49 109.40 - 769.89
May-2019 18.75 - - 18.75
April-2019 64.58 E - 64.58
March-2019 660.50 109.40 - 769.90
February-2019 18.75 - - 18.75
January-2019 64.59 - - 64.59
Decemuer-2018 401.04 109.40 - 510.44
November-2018 18.75 - - 18.75
October-2018 64.58 25.00 - 80.58
September-2018 331.25 109.40 - 440.65
August-2018 18.75 - 18.75
July-2018 33.33 25.00 - 58.33
June-2018 331.25 109.40 - 440.65
April-2013 33.33 25.00 58.33
Total 10,212.02 1,383.90 - 11,595.92
Current Maturity 2,488.72
Long Term Borrowings 9,107.20
Total 11,595.92

othecation of receivables i.c. ioans and advances
d/or holding company.

| Rate of Interest

Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9.00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99% Total
Repayment

March-2022 31.25 - 31.25
Dacember-2021 - 31.25 - 31.25
September-2021 - 31.25 - 31.25
June-2021 : 31.25 . 31.25
March-2021 46.82 140.63 5.98 193.43
December-2020 105.93 187.50 6.25 299.68
September-2020 140.63 187.50 6.25 334.38
June-2020 140.63 187.50 6.25 334.38
March-2020 140.63 187.50 37.50 365.63
December-2019 140.63 187.50 37.50 365.63
September-2019 140.63 187.50 37.50 365.63
June-2019 - ~ 140.63 187.50 37.50 365.63
March-2019 140.63 187.50 37.50 365.63
December-2018 140.63 187.50 37.50 365.63
October-2018 - 25.00 - 25.00
September-2018 140.63 208.34 37.50 386.47
July-2018 - 25.00 - 25.00
June-2018 140.63 208.33 37.50 386.46
April-2018 - 25.00 - 25.00
_Marcl1—2()18 140.62 177.08 37.50 355.20
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Murch 2018

(Currency: indian rupees in Miilion)

3.55 a) Details of term loan taken from Banks (contirnued)
As at March 31 2017
Rate of Interest
Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9,00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99% Total
Repayment
January-2018 - 25.00 - 25.00
December-2017 140.63 177.08 37.50 355.21
October-2017 - 25.00 - 25.00
September-2017 140.63 177.08 37.50 355.21
July-2017 - 25.00 - 25.00
June-2017 140.63 177.08 37.50 355.21
April-2017 - 25.00 - 25.00
Total 2,121.56 3,253.12 474.73 5.849.41
Current Maturity 1.520.83
Long Term Borrowings 4,328.58
Total 5,849.41
3.55 b) Details of term loan taken from SIDBI
As at March 31 2018
Rate of Interest
Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9,00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99% Total
Repayment
March-2023 52.50 - - 52.50
December-2022 52.50 - 52.50
September-2022 52.56 - 52.50
June-2022 52.50 - - 52.50
April-2022 89.00 - - 89.00
March-2022 52.50 - - 52.50
January-2022 83.00 E E 83.00
December-2021 52.50 - 52.50
Octlober-2021 83.00 - - 83.00
September-2021 52.50 - - 52.50
July-2021 83.00 - - 83.00
June-2021 52.50 52.50
April-2021 83.00 - E 33.00
March-2021 52.50 - - 52.50
January-2021 83.00 - B 83.00
December-2020 52.50 - - 52.50
October-2020 83.00 - 83.00
September-2020 52.50 B 52.50
July-2020 83.00 - - 83.00
June-2020 52.50 - - 52.30
April-2020 83.00 - - 83.00
March-2020 52.5C - - 52.50
January-2020 83.00 - - 83.00
December-2019 52.50 - - 52.50
October-2019 33.00 - - 83.00
September-2019 52.50 - - 52.50
Juiy-2019 83.00 - - 83.00
June-2G19 52.50 - - 52.50
April-2019 $3.00 - 83.00
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings (other than debentures):

3.55 b) Details of term loan taken from SIDBI (continued)

As at March 31 2018
Rate of Interest

Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9.00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99% Total
Repayment
March-2019 52.50 - - 52.50
January-2019 83.00 - - 83.00
December-2018 52.50 - - 52.50
October-2018 83.00 - - 83.00
September-2018 52.50 - E 52.50
July-2018 83.00 - - 83.00
June-2018 52.50 B - 52.50
April-2018 83.00 - - 83.00
Total 2,467.00 - - 2,467.00
Current Maturity 542.00
Long Term Borrowings 1,925.00
Total 2,467.00

All secured long term borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.e. loans and advances
and corporate guarantee from the ultimate holding company and/or holding company.

As at March 31 2017

Rate of Interest

Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9.00% to 9.99%

Repayment

10.00% to 10.99%

Total

- Nil Nil

Nil

Nil

- bch'irtercd /’u

/ ‘/ \_PN Pﬂ-i-uog;« ﬂz;;:
(( ( Chartered AC r*untants)ﬁ

W

\ W V01275400 5000
\ = 2754M/MN2
“\\\H Mum‘oa\ __./




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the [l ial (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupecs in Million)

3.56

.57

3.58

3.59

3.60

3.61

3.62

Corporale social responsibilty ( CSR)

As per the provisions of §action 135 of Companies Act 2013,

a) Grass Amount requiresd to be spent by the Company during the year was Rs, 7,19 million; {Previous year Rs. 3.8 million)

b) Amount spent during the year on :

Particulars In cash Yel to be paid In Total
cash
i Construclion/ acquisilion of any assels 7 .
i on purpose other (han (i) above 2,50 2.50
(2.50) 3 (2.50)

1. The Company is a subsidiary of Edelcap Securities Limited and ullimate holding Company is Edulweiss Financial Services Limited. Edelweiss group is conscious of its

Corporale Social R bility and, had ing

blished a CSR arm, "EdelGive Foundaticn” in the year 2008, As an amount of Rs.177.84 million (Previous

year: Rs.|15.68 million) (representing more Ihan 2% of (he consolidated profit of the group) was spenl towards CSR activities during the year ended March 31, 2018, the

Company has not incurred the prescribed CSR expenditure on a standalone basis during the year ended March 31,2018,

2. Figures in bracket are in respect of previous year.

Reglstralion vbialned from other finunclal sector regulators
‘The company is nat registered under any other regulator other Ikan Reserve Bank of India

Details of financing parent company products - Nl (Previous yer - Nil)

Disclosure of pensliles imposed by RBI and other regulators
No penalties have been imposed by RB1 znd other Regulators during the financial year 2017-18 (Previous year - Nil)

Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidinries shroad)
There are no overseas assel owned by the company (Previous year - Nii)

Disclosure under Regulation 53(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligatlons aud Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Related Party transautiony
Pai lars

As at Asal

Loans nind ddvinges nalure of loiis Lo subsidiaries
Lamns and advances in the nature of loans to assaciates
Lamy mnd pdvances o the nature of loans to firs/companies in which direclors are interested

Investients by Ihe loaree in the shares of parent pany and subsidiary P when the pany has 1nade a loan er
advance in the nature of lodn

31 Morch 2018 31 March 2017

Note to (he halance sheet of 8 non-deposit taking non-banking financisl Company

Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking fine:icial Company as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Master Direclion- Non-Banking Financial
Company- Systematically Importaat Non-Deposit laking Company and Dcposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Dircctions, 2016. (Figures are as at 31 March 2018)

Liabilltles slde:
Amount outstanding
As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Particuiars

1) Loans and advances avaiied by NBFC inclusive of interest recrued
thereon bul nol paid

a) Debentuies:

(other than thoze falling within the meaning of Public deposil)

(1) Secured B,143.72 3,267.15
(i) Unsecured 2.675.02 296.86
b) Deferred credils - -
¢) Term loans . ’ 14,077.28 5,6849.41
d) Inier-corporate leans und borowing - -
e) Comumercial paper -
0 Other luans -
13 Lon fromn relaled parties 1,274.98 732.97
2) Bank overdrafl 1,592.65 1,018.53
Assoly sider

2} Break up of loans and ad luding bills ivabl
(other than those included in (3) below)

a) Secured

b) Unsecured

3) Break up of leased assets and stock un hire and niher assels counting lowards AFC activilies
4) Lease assets Including lease rentals under sundry deblors:
(i) Financial lease
(ii) Operating lease

b) Slock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
(i) Assets on hire
(ii) Repussessed assels

c) Other foans counting towards assel financing Comyany activities
(i) Lonns where asseis have heen repossessed
(i) Other lyans

Amount overdue
Asat As al
3) March 2018 31 March 2017

Amount Outstanding
As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

17,269.35 9,142.18
15,171.76 5,594.38
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes fo the fi lal (Conlinued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

{Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

3.62  Note (o the balance sheel of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company as required in terms of 13 of Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial
Company- S ically Imp Non-Deposil taking Company and Deposil taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. (Figures are as al 3] March 2018)
(continued)

As at Asal
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

4} Break up of investments
Current investments:

a) Quoled:
(i)  Shares: Equity - =
Preference . -
(ii)  Debentures and bonds -
(i)  Units of mutval funds -
(iv) Governmenl securiies - .
(v) Others . -
b} Unquoted:
(i)  Shares: Equity - -
Preference = .
(ii)  Debentures and bonds -
(iii)  Unils of muiual funds -
(iv) Government securilies - -
(v) Others (pass through certificales) - -
Dretails of ferm loan taken from SIDBI
Long-term i (net of provision)
a) Quoted:
(i)  Shares: Equity -
Preference - -
(i) Debentures and bonds - &
(iii)  Unils of mutual funds -
(iv) Government securities . .
(v) Others - =
b) Unquoled:
(i)  Shares: Equity B
Preference

(ii)  Debentures and bonds
(iii)  Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government securilies - s
{v) Others - .
- Pass through certificates
- Security receipls

5) Borrower group-wise classification of assels financed as jn (2) and (3) above
Amount nel of provislons

Particulars Secured Unsecured Total
As at As at As al Asal Asal As al
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

1. Relaled parties**

(a) Subsidiaries - = = = a

{b) Companies in the

same group . _ 5 a % -

{c) Other related . . - % ~ H
2. Other than related 17,171.86 9,105.75 15,107.98 5,570.43 32,279.84 14,676.18
TOTAL 17,171.86 9,105.73 15,107.98 5,570.43 32,279.84 14,676.18

** As per Accounting Standard 18 - Related Party Transactions

6) Investor group-wise classification of all i (current and long-term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)
Book value
Particulars Market value/break up or fair value or NAV {nel of provisions)
As at As al Asal Asal
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
1) Related parties
(a) Subsidiaries . - - *
(b) Companies in the same group - - - -
(c) Other related parties > 3 . .
2) Other than related parties
TOTAL ] z . E
7) Other information
a) Gross non-performing assels
1) Related parties - .
2) Other than relaled parties 346.02 61.97
b} Nel non-performing assels
1) Related parties . -
2) Other than related parties 307.42 53.01
) Assels acquired in satisfaction of debi -
Note :
1. As defined in paragraph 2(1)(xii} of the Non-Banking Financial Compnay Acceplance of public deposits(Reserve bank) Direction, [998.
3.63  Detalis of with non ive di
Asat Asat
Name of the Director Nature of Transaction 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Mr. Milu! Shah Sitling fees 022 020
Mr. Sanjay Shah Sitting fees 0.22 0.20
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)
3.64  There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund as at March 31,2018

3.65  Off-Balance sheet SPV sporisored - Nil (Previous year - Nil)

3.66  Disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes* (SBNs) held and transacied during the period from 08th November 1o 30th December 2016 pursuant to
notification no. G.S.R. 308(E) dated 30th March 2017

Particulars SBNs™ Other denomination notes Total
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 2.13 0.00 2.13
1+} Permitted receipts - 042 0.42
(-) Permitted payments E - -
{-) Amount deposited in Banks 2.13 0.42 2.55
Closing cash in hand as on 36.12.2016 - 0.00* 0.00"

A- Amcunt is less than 0.01 million
* Tor the purposes of this ciause, the term specitied bank notes (SBNs) means the bank notes of denomination of existing series of the value of five hundred rupees

and on¢ thousand rupees as detined under the notification of Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs No. $.0.3407(E),
dated 8th November 2016.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reananged wherever necessary confimm to current year's presentation / classification.

Signature to notes forming part of the Financial Statements

pbehrlf of the Board of Directors
Edeiweiss Retail Finance Limited

Ko-Lunris

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLLP
Firm Registiation Number 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accounrtanis

Sharad Agurwail Anil Kothuri Shalinee Mimani
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 118522 DIN: 00177945 DIN : 07404675
Q\WM e 1k He) easndln
Vineet Mahajan Sudipta Majuwimdar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Mumbai Membership no - A33961

02 May 2018 02 May 2018 02 May 2018
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